CHO

A 3§ R P O R T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Meeting
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 8:30 a.m. — Airport Lower Level Conference Room

AGENDA

Call to Order:

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — August 5, 2019 and October 17, 2019 (Joint Meeting)
2. Financial Statements — June 2019 and September 2019 (Unaudited)
3. Airport Statistics: June, July, August, and September 2019

Matters from the Public: All person desiring to make presentations as part of the MATTERS FROM THE
PUBLIC section of the Agenda are requested to advise the administrative office prior to commencement of the
meeting to assist the Chairman in conducting the meeting in an efficient and productive manner; allowing for
maximum input. Speakers are encouraged to limit remarks to five minutes. Additional time may be granted
solely at the discretion of the Chairman unless such presentation is extended by reason of the Authority’s request

for additional information:

Action Items:
1. Approval of Amendment #2 to the Airport’s FY20 Capital Budget

Informational Items: Executive Director’s Update

Closed Session:
In accordance with VA Code 2.2-3712 the Airport Authority will convene in closed session for the
following purposes:

For discussion and consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose where discussion
in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public
body pursuant to VA Code 2.2-3711 (A) (3).

Next Scheduled Meeting: January 14, 2020 at a time and place to be determined.

Adjourn:



CHO

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, August 5, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. at City Hall — 2" Floor Conference Room

MINUTES

Members Present: Mike Murphy, Donald Long, Jeff Richardson

Members Absent: none

Staff Present: Melinda Crawford: Executive Director; Jason Burch: Deputy Executive Director; Penny Shifflett:
Director of Finance and Administration; Stirling Williams: Director of Landside Operations; Jessica Conley:
Administrative Assistant;

Others Present: Lisa Robertson- Chief Deputy City Attorney, City of Charlottesville; Steven Allhouse-Manager of

Economic Analysis and Forecasting at the County of Albemarle
Call to Order at 11:05 a.m. by Donald Long

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — July 16, 2019 meeting

Mr. Richardson made a motion to accept Consent Agenda and motion was seconded by Mr. Murphy. It was
unanimously accepted.

Matters from the Public: None

Items:
1. Approve Amendments to the Airport’s Capital Budget-The original budgets are impacted due to current

funding allocations and higher than anticipated bids that were received for the Ramp Expansion Project
and the Entry Pavilion Construction Project. The items within the budget that were being revised were
discussed. Mr. Richardson made a motion to approve Amendments to the Airport’s Capital Budget and
Mr. Murphy seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved.

2. Award of 2019 Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Construction Contract and Related Engineering
Construction Administration Work Order and Approval of Resolution No. 2019-6 “Executive Director
Authorization to Administer the 2019 Air Carrier Expansion Contract and Related Engineering
Construction Administration Contracts.”-.Sargent Corporation was the apparent low bidder with the
amount of $7,961,440. The acceptance of the contract with Sargent Corporation is contingent upon the
receipt of an FAA grant. The contract and related engineering work was discussed. Mr. Richardson
made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2019-6 and Mr. Murphy seconded the motion. The motion
was unanimously approved.

Informational Items:
a. Executive Director’s Update: Mrs. Crawford discussed the upcoming Joint Board/Committee Fall Retreat.

Mr. Long thanked staff for providing a shadowing-opportunity to a local student who was hired by one of the airport
tenants following that event. Mr. Murphy discussed training and work force development opportunities that may be
available through the City of Charlottesville.

Next Scheduled Meeting: Thursday, October 17", 2019, 9:00 a.m., at Montpelier for Joint Board/ Commission Fall
Retreat

Adjournment at 11:29 a.m. Mr. Richardson motioned to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Murphy seconded, and it was
unanimously approved.



—
Al R P O R T
Special Joint Meeting of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority and the
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Commission
October 17, 2019, 9:00 a.m.

Lewis Hall, James Madison’s Montpelier, 11350 Constitution Highway,
Montpelier Station, Virginia 22957

Minutes

Members Present: Donald Long, Jeff Richardson, Addison Barnhardt, Chris Engel, Eric Walden, Steven Hiss,
Members Absent: Mike Murphy, Michael Prichard

Staff Present: Melinda Crawford: Executive Director; Jason Burch: Deputy Executive Director; Penny Shifflett: Director
of Finance & Administration; Stirling Williams: Director of Landside Operations; Jason Devillier: Director of Maintenance
& Construction; Connie Cook: HR and Special Project; Troy Buttner: Airfield Maintenance Supervisor; Jonathan Shifflett:
Fleet Supervisor; Jonathan Shenk: Chief of Public Safety; Mark Frazier: Public Safety Sargent; Travis Ratcliff: Public
Safety Sargent; Arlene Forrest: Marketing and Administrative Assistant

Others Present: Sebastian Waisman: Assistant City Attorney, City of Charlottesville

Call to Order: At 9:15, Mr. Long welcomed the attendees to the special joint meeting and requested a moment
of silence for the passing of Commissioner Brian Campbell.

Consent Agenda: None
Matters from the Public: None

Items:
1. Mr. Burch directed the introductions of Staff, Authority members, Commissioners, and Counsel — a brief

discussion of the biggest challenges and opportunities facing Staff was provided, and Mr. Walden
discussed his concerns regarding the MALSR and the correspondence he intends to send to U.S. Senators.

2. Mr. Waisman provided a review of regulations that apply to Authority Members and Commissioners —
“Contlict of Interest Act”, “Guide to VA Public Records”, and “Freedom of Information Act.”

3. Ms. Crawford shared the “CHO FY-19 in Review” presentation and discussed CHO’s growing
enplanements, the airport’s economic impact to the region, staff’s accomplishments, and numerous
projects to include the steps that have been taken to reactivate the MALSR.

4. Following lunch, Ms. Crawford reviewed “CHO’s Good Neighbor Policy” and zoning issues.

5. Ms. Shifflett discussed the Authority’s Vision and Mission.

6. Ms. Crawford led a discussion of CHO’s upcoming Terminal Area Plan and Strategic Review. Ms.
Crawford will begin discussions with local representatives of public transit.

7. Ms. Crawford provided additional discussion about CHO’ Customer Service Initiatives.

8. Ms. Shifflett reviewed the Budget process.

9. Ms. Crawford discussed upcoming projects, policy reviews, and CHO’s efforts to enhance public/tenant
outreach and employee communications.

Next Scheduled Commission Meeting: Monday, November 11, 2019, 4:00pm,
Airport Lower Level Conference Room

Next Scheduled Authority Meeting: Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 8:30am,
Airport Lower Level Conference Room

Adjourn: Mr. Long provided closing remarks and the meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p-m.



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Financial Statements (unaudited)
As of June 30, 2019



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Profit & Loss Notes
As of June 30, 2019

$15K and 10% change

Revenues:

A.

B.

C.

Interest Income:--Rates have risen and currently there are large amounts in the Revenue
and Discretionary funds awaiting local funding of projects.

FBO Revenues:--This revenue is directly related to activity at Signature Flight Center.
Actual revenues have come in higher than projected.

State Entitlement for Airfield Maintenance Expenses:-- This line item was adjusted at
year-end when analyzing the expenses as aligned with the Virginia Department of
Aviation’s State Entitlement Utilization Report. The budget programmed all of this
revenue under the line item “State Entitlement for Terminal Maintenance Expenses” at an
annual figure of $300K. However, it was determined that approximately $54K was
related to airfield expenses.

Advertising:--This is the airport’s first full year with advertising revenue. The actual
revenues have come in higher than projected.

Food/Gift Concessions:--Tailwind activity continues to exceed expectations with their
growth in sales which is also tied to the increase in passenger activity.

State Entitlement for Terminal Maintenance Expenses:--This line was adjusted at year-
end when analyzing the expenses as aligned with the Virginia Department of Aviation’s
State Entitlement Utilization Report. There were fewer allowable expenses than
anticipated. Overall, the budget for this line item was $300K and the year-end analysis
produced approximately $54K in airfield (as noted in the explanation of “C” above) and
$145K in terminal.

Business Center/Lounge:--This line item is under budget both in revenues and
corresponding expenses due to lower traffic than expected at its inception. We will
continue to monitor the passengers that utilize the space and make adjustments to future
budgets. This is not a profit-driven activity. Rather, we strive to only recoup expenses.
State Entitlement for Debt Service Reimbursement:--This line item will be below budget
at year end by $95,000. The terminal debt service was paid off in April this year. The
actual reimbursement for FY19 will be $190,000.

Expenses:

L

Retirement Expenses: - At year-end, the retirement and life insurance expenses are
adjusted according to Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 68 and 75.
All VRS participants are required to make several entries at year end to reflect actual and
estimated activity according to VRS records. The amounts are provided by VRS and all




entities are required to make the necessary adjustments to their financial records. These
figures are audited at year-end.

Various Expense Line Items:--There are line items that are under budget. These expenses
vary and it is not unusual for the expenses to be incurred later in the year or at the end of
the budget cycle or to be much lower than budgeted.

. Various Payroll and Benefit Expense Line Items:-- There were vacant positions in our
FY19 budget and while most have been filled, some remain vacant. The practice when
calculating the budget for benefits related to open positions is to plan for the employee to
select the most expensive health care option. This is why it appears as if we have
underspent in the Health Insurance line item because as employees come on board, they
are selecting coverages that are requiring less employer expenses.

. Maintenance Airfield Equipment:--year-to-date expense:$189,072 Budgeted: $103,100
This account is over budget partly due to a major repair to a dump truck ($40,640.80)
done in FY19 that was paid by insurance in FY18. GAAP required recognition of that
revenue in FY18 even though the repair didn’t get completed until FY19. This was
discussed with the auditor during the FY18 audit. There were other repairs to the fleet
that needed to be done.

. Vehicle Expense Gas and Qil:--  year-to-date expense: $64,381 Budgeted: $48,844
The May and June 2018 fuel bills totaled $7,863 and were entered as of July 1 because
the bills were received from Signature late so these expenses were absorbed into the

FY19 budget cycle.

. ARFF Equipment: -- year-to-date expense: $43,697 Budgeted: $25,500
There were more expenses than anticipated for new officer gear.

. Parking Equipment Maintenance:-- year-to-date expense: $45,905  Budgeted: $25,290
This account is over budget due to the repair of parking equipment due to storm damage.

. Terminal and Airfield OT:--

These line items are over budget due to our public safety officers having to work
overtime due to being so short staffed at the beginning of the year as well as our new
shop & fleet supervisor and new custodians working overtime to get up to speed.

. Terminal Maintenance:-- year-to-date expense: $209,714 Budgeted: $107,508
There were some terminal modifications to improve airline and overall operational
efficiency. Some examples: Delta was moved from gate 2 to gate 4 due to aircraft
relocation, a water line had to be installed for American, a wall was constructed to
accommodate staffing, furniture and cabinetry were installed as needed, etc.

. Terminal Janitorial Supplies and Janitorial Contract: These two line items are related.

Originally, we had planned on terminating our contracted services for janitorial services,
but we did not hire our own staff until August and therefore paid a third party for the
month of July. As for the Janitorial supplies being over budget, there were some larger



pieces of equipment that needed to be purchased at the onset of having our own
employees perform some of the janitorial duties.

S. HVAC Maintenance:-- year-to-date expense: $137,774 Budgeted: $89,504
This line item accounts for the maintenance that is needed for our aging system. The
expenses for this area exceeded our budget.

T. Emergency Communications:-- year-to-date expense: $52,819 Budgeted: $27,108
This line item is for the Verizon bill that ensures staffing communication needs as well as
for any portable radio replacements. There was only $7K budgeted for radio
replacements, but with the upgraded 800Mhz system moving towards completion, it
required the replacement of more radios than anticipated. During FY19, over $21K was
spent on upgrading radios and equipment.

U. Public Safety Uniforms:-- year-to-date expense: $29,141 Budgeted: $8,800
Due to the Public Safety Department becoming fully staffed with 11 officers in FY19,
expenses exceeded budgeted amounts which originally had only accounted for slight
changes for an estimated 8 officers.

V. 2004 Debt Service Terminal:--year-to-date expenses: $357,000 Budgeted: $396,666
This line item will be below budget by one monthly payment amount of $39,666. When
calculating the last payment, an extra month was included in error.

W. Depreciation & Amortization:-- year-to-date expense: $4,390,045 Budgeted: $3,936,000
This line item increased due to large projects being capitalized at year-end. i.e., the
Runway Rehabilitation Project, et.al.

Net Income

June year-to-date net income before other income = $1,468,720.



D  %8sve-  (0006v'Ee)) 00°000°97} 00015Z2 loogal'zk | |oossoe ebunouejus) sseusng - 0SEVOVE| |
4 wsesr  (69'zEr'svl) 00°000°008 | ey | o0o00'sz | |1ezeavel | usjujE jeuluUe) S0} T OIS - 00SEOVE| | R
%000 - ooeLy'L _ _8.2«.“ . looezs To.mw.m ~ uoIsse0uU0) WLV - 00vEOVE N
%ZLie  (0vEze'l) 00000z 09228 0o | oo IBuluLIe) SNOSUBIOISIA - OOEEOYE. ||| _ )
3 wslue ov'zsr'or 0000690k | [ovzsE'ert | ovs0 | e SUCIS$82U0D HIOJPOO - 0SZEOVE RN
a  %6oie 05°169'0Y 00°000°0G1 0519961 | ovoosz | oosze's | Buspioapy - oozeove| | | |
%000 |toow) 0021828 0091828 | ooeley | |oo@igy I 9580 PUET VLD 1D [EJUSY - SGLEOVE| | il
%000 | - 00°000'r2 | |ooooovz | 00000z | [oo000z | seeq. loshodsuRi) punoio - 05160vE|
%9z'8 | 81erLce L% 009'g80'L svevevzih | |000s0'vzz | |p9'ong’eoe B onuaAey Ju [Ejuey - 00LE0VE | B
WLLOT | 0069’ 00'g6l'oe ov'ges'sy 00'6L0' zLLely Juswesnquiey VSL - S90E0VE |
%16 | evesLe 0zeL'y £LIzg'sy 00262' z626L'e JusN/II e01Meg YV - 0SOLOPE
1%00°0 (89'12) 00986'2LS | |zeteells \0ogaL'ey egloL'ey o . ~ 3uey euily - 000£0%E - o
[ | ) - _ B | B il ~ s3NN3A3YTNIWNIL -M _ |
%EL'L Y0'€91'LG 00°289'C8S"Y bO'0SEVESY | |00Z00CZY | |00°6SE'26E S3NNIATY ONDINV oy ||
 |wzese 0055y 00°002"1 00'g89') 1007004 CER ~ so0g snoausjieosi - 910101 _ 1 ._I _
LT _9 zaL'L 00°009's 81'285'0 o00sy | |000SS sedgsesueory ‘muusd - Bupked - Siovovk | | | _
%60'L 7% GoG'6Y 080zsy | eszvousy | loozsrzzy | lo0veL g6 . ~ onuonsyBupped | | |
B - I RN i I 7 - ~ SANNIAIY ONDRIVd -Al
%LETL | L908L6LL 00'890's5Y'L |7.. 19861280, 7 00P9ZELL | £6:200'58 ~ S3NN3ATN QNN reioL | 1]
B %89T! _ 00°002't oooozeL __ 00008% | o000kl | [o0l6E's 7! "QUII9Y 103U0D $8990Y ANoog - - 9098092 _| A |
%006~ (00°006) 00'002's 00008 _ 00°004 (000 _ PIOWIIV 9NUGAGY SNOBUEIISIN - 00EE0PZ “ 7 w
D %0000 LI'SebyS w00 | Tiveervs U lweerrs | _ Ploly-cousuSluB 3 ejEls - 00820V, | | |
i wssor | zozz0% [00°000' 29220 o000 | |ooo T ) ~ eBemoly WY - emuusi T
g %o ¥2'861'25 00°2E6'ShY 2081 '260 0019128 98'190'6E enusaey 084 - 00ZZ0vZ|
%652 | vo'cig'9 0096506 | |vo'Lib'Z6 | lo06zi's | |evopie o 994 plewivAuey punais - 00kzovE, |
_g%MT (rreve'sy) 00088'7C BECT | |ooss0z aJo.o [ - sioueud - Lo0zovz| 1] |_r
| %058 (OvesvL  looozezie OV8E'OVE | 002692, _ LrvZeLe 7 enuaney u:.w:u._ SUIIY - 000Z0vZ L
_ _ _ _ _ _ SanNaATY aTIEY| ||
lwse'sl  ec0s9TL  oooog6l 6805616 - oeee | lsveese | - SINNIATY INLVHISININGY 1ed0L] | | |
V %8292 69°LLL6L 00°005'Z leotizzz 00529 s9'88y'e  owooupisosewi-ooosovz| | | |
(%4591 |(00°005°0) 000006 | 0008’8z ~Jooo looo ~ wiig uopouIold B UCHEINY VOTA - 00L¥0¥9.
_§oc 2  |oooozge 7 (00v0z'ee xm.mﬁ.u | ooz | | WewesInquiey 4EIG V. VID-loopor) |
%061 (05°598) 001009 | lozveoe - |oo00e | ogTve 9L02U) SNOSUEIISISIA - 000¥0VO __
N [ 1 1 T 171 I SINNIATY IALVHISINNGY| i
. _ B B ] _ _ - _ swoouj|
I - il - [ .|._ T o o B o aﬂ_xm\oEOo:_ waEO [
Bueyo% _ o0uedds  jefpnmpenuuy | | giunr-glnr | | iedpng | | g unr _ T
| | | [
6102 sunp

aduewLIONad JoBpng sS0T %9 oI
uoday aueWaqlY allASanoLIeyY)

siseg jeniooy

61/90/11




@duewuopad Jabpng sso1 g jyoiy
Hoduly ajiewsq)y ajjIAsapolRY )

f %v90-  (19°00z261) 00'05z'S8Y " Tecevo'ese | Joosev'sy | Tsozos esuadx3 UOROWOId B HEADY - 0982059 ]

[ %esee  (6c2ezs) 00°005" 161 ez | loozees H_..mm.vmmwm . . | Seeduosseoid osezose | | | |
%8Z9s | ozest jooosz | Tozese ?o.%u oo _ csuodxaideqpes-0o0szose | | | B
%0000L | vo'GyL 1000 Yo'SvL ] | eeuee sesusdx3 snosuelleosiy - 0922059

[ %ivse-  (espigol) 0008Y'2y | |11'600'E 7 ooeset | /g9  sosuodx3 ounosey uewnH - 05zz0ss. | ” 7
w0000t | vozas 00'0 vozeL i oo - ~ soegeoines - 1022050 17 h

%eveey | oog107 - jooo0e | ogmize 100°00€ _I loo'orz | 80y Bupjueg .SIE_SIW T )
%ol le- ;:b.%& oroo't | leeoes | leoes o0 I )  eBmsog. 09209 [ |
%Z0TLL | 0SELY'E 00004’ 052.5'9 | |ooze sezon esuedx3 Bugoon - 0092089 | | il 7
wvszl-  |(g008) ~o0oorz | |zose0e _ (00002 12861 o Iwc_am___lm._.cwuomw.il HENE
%Svir- [(00°025'2) |00'080'9 | 00095 002y |000 Bupexiew sang 3 seng - 1572059 |
%6090L | 19EvL6 006Le'8 4 92000 | |ootaL 000 enpesswwpy--sang g sena - oszzose | |
%6ELS-  (890zL'WL)  |00'000'6Z | |ecee's [ .Aoo.o oo R Bupenew-joneyy - lorzoss| | | | |
(%069, | Zu61'7 o000l | |zeia |J_~ 0080 | zossz | oapensmwpy- ol ooizoss || T I

%z [(eesor) oozezs | lveeas | ooeer | Tlm.w&; [ o820 Juewdinba - 020Z059 17

[ %8l (ee228'19) 00°2£5'6V1 | [eoesous | lovesvzr | lovzeez R ssuedxgseindwog - ogozose| | |
%061 (L0°9v8'e) 000316 | eeeee’s ?o.mﬂ | ooo _ SAnensupY - uopeonpa - 060Z0s9| | |
%06€Z | 6E'129 000007 66122 | Jooeiz T eziee | seesBumssesorajoiked - szozose |
%90 (592£9'6) o0geEEz segeLzL _ ovest | N B $05URdX3 SO0 - 1002059 _ _
_..\&m« | 2V160') 0000771 | Eers | jooooz lovseh _ seaddngedyo. 0002059 | ml _|
%098 (2Lv9ED) 00°005'22 BT |o0'sez? 7 eveEzz SAe:}SIIpY - osuodx3 nsul - 002109 | ]
%vELy  (89°0.8'Z)) 00'8¥8'9z | esuesl 0oLz w150 | SAERSILIWPY - BUCYdOIOL-IN - 0014059

1 wvor-  (95°622'92) ootvges | ‘vv.tm.mln ~ |ooies (89S | oapensiumwpy - juowesey - 0520059 L]
C %iv0s | eomie 00€29 | eoss | oous [l uwey-qesaiimesiass-ootooss| || Nl

| %ee89-  |(62201'9) 100Z68'8 i ez joowe | ozmize SARenSIUIWPY - eouBinsul o1 - 0520059| | | 7 _
Wz 9t oosse'Lg | lz0us | looszse | ovowss  eAnensjuwpy-ddns/'su) yieeH - 0020059 A; 1|
%eo'l-  (£9°6.6) 008ELIS | igT9l'9s 7 00'660'G ‘ v6TY9E | eanensjiwpy - sexe) jloked - 0510059 | [
%Z6VS | 657860 |o0000'02 65v86'08 | looooy | eoeor’t |  uwpy-swRiea0- 0500058 |
%6l | 228007} 00'266°952 |1z'c96'89, | ooosg'se | -.ﬁ%.mmwv: _ ~ oApensiupupy -seBem - gooooss | | |
| m _ o | T T - sosuadxg o>=a.=u_=ﬂ=u<_.l 7 [
| | I N N [ |1 . coecrd | ]
%zL'0 ¥6'865'79 2260'696' '81°169'€0°6 YESLLL06 | LEEOE'NST) | [youd sso19
%ZL0 | 698SV9 72260696 | 811698806 VO'SLIL0B | LEE9E'LSTL : swoou) jejoy| |
%ove  (ovevesl)  yzleoeose | 80Z60'v2LT LT818'SSE | |02'€0v'299 -  sanNaaaw NWEL oL
%000 | - vELLE 8L VT LLE' 8L zZnese | lzvs IeideD penquguog sulrv - 0o0Log0| | |

H %eeEee  (00'000'G6) 000008 | |00000'06) | 000 | |oo0oo'ss | UwSIquIey ‘AieS iqeq i Els - o0zsovz| | | |||

 eBueygy | eBueuns | 3oBpng remury " | eLunp-gl.mp }Bpng | | epunr | - [T T

_ |
6102 sunp

siseg [enuooy
6L/90/LL

AN 182



|%00'86-  (80'0¥6'2) |00°000° _ X | |ooosz | _8.0 slelajely Jewzey - 0SPZLSZ 7 i
wrels-  (L0'89e's) 00°00€'9L 66°1€6'L 00Z9e't | 000 suseasd -szpzisz| | | | |
%9t (1Z280'L) 100'086'€1 62909 00'89'1 _ 000 ] soyddng Buutely 13V - 00vZL5Z ] _
N %%, srosi'el 00°006'sZ Tx 969'cy oo sz | elesel . Juowdinb3 438V - 05€Z15Z 11
%000 L o- 00'622'22 o0'szze 7 000 | szess's | 899 OOUBUSIUIEN ZHW 008 - LSSE0SZ, | | | ]
_,.\_,3.@ _ 15°68.'e mool.m:.o_mw ..S.mmnmm| _ mo.omo.m c9'066') _ Qu__ns.w _mEoE_a._|_>=m . om@mu. | ! |
%LY'E6- (20Zov'1L) \00°005°t 7 €6'26 oo | |oo0 _ sos|osex3 AousBiows3 - 0005z |
%Z6E | 15g8e lo0eze's STzl | |oosi8 " osre _ © PIPWIV - SULOHU - 000£0SZ i
%ce96y | /£'898'8 00682 28°e59'01 |ooo 1000 Pleyly ‘ang g sonq - 0572052 | v _
%209 (671596 lo0ogzi0L ey | |ovsss T Toos |  eduBUSIUIBW fee) - 0012057 - _ 1]
%985s-  |(82°088'6) 00'80G'L} zL1z9't - |ooese " loogsz soususjulely - UOREINPT - 05020SZ _
we\%m.mﬂ ?v. 188 loovove'z ._.:lwm.n * loo'seL 'szIee 7 o ~ seeJ Buissecoid ljoiked - 5Zozosz| | 1
I %60  (0zl8v'ce) 0000008 _ log'zis'yL 100891y oo 7 B PIoWIY-SouzualuIEy e3mS - 0581052 )
N %i8ie GE'2E5'GL 00'v8'sy L leEiee «o 00'720'% 19°'695'% 110 Pue e esuadxg e|oIyeA - 0051052
|%ze'8s- _Gr.noqﬁ 00091 7 8961’ 7 l00'0ew 66V _. PISWIY - "Yaind ‘dinb3 Julel - 05¥LOSZ
1 %6eEs €2216'G8 00°00L'€0} ‘€ZL068L | |00'88'e | lezaaive | Juswdinb3 preyy ey - 00rLOSZ|
.._.\..Nm.m. (20881'0) _8 081 | |es1eg'oL B loo'L8r'L |.__ or've ||| oo..s__s:_us_ SpunciY plery - Ensm«.. | _ I_
%LE'S 00'178'} o0 08261 _8 129'1Z 00289’ | |/£780%2 PISWIIY - 0UBUSIUIE - 0GELOSZ| | ]
%Zy'e ve9Ey sz B |ooeso't | Isozey  aoueuejuIeIN BupyBI - -oogrosz || ||
l%rsiz- (ev'elaiol) oooig'sy |L5°961'8¢ 000 lo00 i PIGIHIY - [eAOUIBY MOUS - 0SZL06T ; T 177
%00~ (82'®) ovoog'or 2L%wS0r loouse's | Jovesee | PlOWIY - esuedxg eoueansul - o0zhosz| | | |
%0092 | 0260 0002y | |ozezs 00°se 'vr6e |_ _ Plewiv-ielemisn -osiiosz| |||
 |wresie Geeie) |o000r's 919802 00002 _,mm.wB i POy - ouoydeleLAN - 00LL0SZ| | | o
wsrez | L8vELl 000009 sveLs | 000 000 B ~ Plowiy - euedoigBn - 090L0sz| || |
%808 |(e6°92¢'2) 00008'82 [voezpoe | loooov'z Tm 0L * © piewiY - omdeiImn - o00kosz| |||
[ 1 w0 (seEsisl) 000228 Zoizozz | |oovore . _mw 2086 | © PPWIY -jueweamey - 0580082, ||| |
5 %202 (c191) 00082 sggaL. | |00'se | lzeoz PISWIIY - qesiq 1/qesid 1S - 006005Z] | |
1 |werse  [(zgesi'y) 0096e'9 v 02T 00'ges 7 logee0’s- | ~ PoWIv-oouensuiey - 0520082 || ||
 lmevl- (00sze'el) lo018i'e6 | |oveseze _I_ 00'0£9'8 | oeLyLL PIoWY - ddngrsuj yjeey - aouﬂmm -
i Emv.v. (€5'810'2) oo.rmw.m.« | _Q.NHW.? . _oo.oom_v |_T ,oo.mvw.m PIoyIY - sexeL __o.sum . omlsam«_,
| d wiser S8'€82'9Z 00°000'09 | |seeazoe 000007 | sgoLLL PISWLIY - SWRISAD - 1500052
._a\omvf ._?m.mvo.vmv “oc.%nmmm ﬁ Imo.mo\..:m _ .S.mom.mm _ “S.ﬂo.mm | u_o_t_|<-mam§>.8°8mu
O s B Y NS I A : wossdra iy
%00vZ-  |(29°6£9'0vG) 009£922227 | 8v'sse'sLo'l 7 00'LL6'STT | |9vSEgEoL | sesuodx3 eAgessiujwpY _sﬁ
[ %6EVe-  (00'5S0'Z9M) 00°089'}LL 00'629'6 000690y ‘o0'Gz8 esuadya ‘AeQ 89jAIeS IV - 0387059 [
[ %Zve  (bo62L'02) 00009'vZ lorosg'e 000507 _Np.m|mw | ‘SjuoAz [epoeds - Logzosd| | | |
 [eBueygy, | eBueugg | 300png |enudy 8L unf - g, Inp je6png | 6 unp - | T -

610Z sunp
aduewIoM8d awmu:m S$S01 9 jijoid
Hodiiy sirewaqiv aIIASaNOLIBY N

s|seq [enusoy
61/90/11

ans jaca




(%8E1Z- (bO'08L'0LY) |00'958°661'2 9E'CLL'BZL L | [ooBLL86L | [eL0L0Tier _ sesuedig Bupued ejoL
%0G'LS-  |(8e'vLz'o8e) 00°000'052 29°'59.2'89¢ | |o000s'ze SPL Yy 6102 0Z uolsuedx3 Bupyied edepng - «SSS_ 17
%o |(Greror)  00vis6a) i sgvroesL | | loosvoze | [seoize - Bupyed eoinios 3900 ¥00z - Losgoss| | | ||
%96'0-  (92'152') 00ZLE'E8L - |rzosgisl 00921 Tvesises -  Bupiied edjies 190G 1107 - Suncm_‘ T 1 1
1%00001-  (00%02) oovoz  looo ooz o000 | : osuedx3igeq pes - 0s1e0SL | |
%056 (00Lkh) (000zL | oot S oo oot R UOUS 2 18AD - S0LE05 )| “
%LVE _.mw.mmmw ) _co.&o.oﬁ. .. 1zzee'o0z |0000s’sL | |..NF.tHF.2 | - sesy Euo NPe1) Bupprey - 8_.22_1 e
wee0s-  (eszz0’s) 0000001 | wusy oo | oeg ) Bupped-suLoyun - 000€0S) . ]
%5968 | 81029 00'094'S | leresss 00'08¥ 10'98e'e Buppeg-esuedxa sejoleA - 0052051
%0808~ |(00'8El)  looer | oooie 7 0028 Clooo T Buppey - 'sqng g senq - o...ugﬂ_ i
%6026~ |(00'86€'E)  |00'005 " Joozow | oossz | looo . - Bupyieq - jenes) - 0012051 1
%0000k (00'GBL'E)  |00'Gel'E 000 | lovesz | 000 | Bupped - uopeonpa - 050z051 | |
%seeT | 8zizL 1000052 | ezizee | lowost | eziee | sood Bupssesouq jlosked - SZ0Z05 1 [
%LL6S | 00'188'L (00'002'€L | leois0iz | oooot | |oeea | $u0d oyjes). g oBeuBlS-Bupied - 100205+ ]
%0SEE-  |(ZL'EVL'T) |oooves i ~ 8z9eY'S [00r0g9 lzzsy | ~ Bupireq - seyddng . oceuem—_ 1 |
O %zi8  1E619'0z ovoszsz | 1gsoe'sy | oozovz | zvasrn | edoueusjue dinb3 Bupyed - 0ovLosL| | T
%081y | Lee80'8 00'0LE61 1666822 00'H19'L lczEez 7 sdejg/syloogAuswensd Bupied - 15glos) T
I ...x.ﬂ.:\. (s6'622'cP) _chmh.mlor | ..mol.w%.om - | |_8.$w.m ||,. @Qn-ll I oo:w..m.u.:ﬂs_ spunoug Bupied - 0S£405)| _.l w_ m_.
%S9°€6- avaN.E 00°000°2L _ z5eL - J .oo.oocw | |gevee | - BupyBi 307 9._.:#_.32%—_ _ B _ B
%89'Lt-  |(61'092'E) 00°006'2 | ieeeLy 000 | levsze _ Bupyied - jeAowey Mous - 06Z1051 ]
1%1z°0- l(8z'z2) ._.oo.oovl.e lzrusor | Jooses | ieves | Bupiied - esuedx3 eoueinsu; - 00zL0g) | I
AT 00°00€ 1Z992 | loose | Jeroe *i Buppied - selenvinn - 0shiosk| | | |
%6 _,Go.mmmw 00000z ) _ SE90F'LL Mo.ooo.w . _.mm.mmw T ~ Buppeg - euoydete1-ian - 0041081 _ _ B
%895 |(sezge) 00 0ry | sousLy 00°0L€ |_8 ooe | _ swn Bupkearinn - oiovost| | | | |
| %695  (ss'oLv'za) 00'€9Y'6E | lavzeeor | looveze | zeeisi- ~ Buplied - Jusweiney - 08g005L | -
- |wvgez-  |(zooow) 00795’ leezeor | ovoes Cleowr  Bupped-qesigiigesiais-cosoost] ||
I |%09ve- (s0°052'S) 00902'9 e - looele | |zmosen 4 Buppeq - eoueinsul ey - 05Z005H | |
W %teze  (00'S01'82) ooese'ssk | oolesz6 | oossror | ooevos | Buppied - ddng/sul wiwo - 00zoogs, | |
~ |%o000r | o009zt I  Jovoez's _ | Aooo — sooinies poroenuoDBuPMEd - 5210081 7 ]
il %s60-  (19'87¢) 00'086've _mm 12z've | ovzeez | ey | Buppied - sexel joifed - 051005 | | |
) %680 mar.mvi .mo.ooo..om v ¥56'6p _ 100'00Z°t 892¢ L's 7 B Bupped - swineAQ - 050008 i 11
%Lbe | 00’9086 00'v£6'96€ | ovovz'9oy 00'88r'ee 81°868'L5 Bupyed - seBem - 0000051 ] _
_ [ [ _ ‘sosuadxg m:_x._mn__ | _
%0p°0- (09°€55°) 00'LEL'E0V ) _Wv.tm.sm; a[o.nﬁ.o: _ |s50LLZpL ) - ~ sesuedx3 playry _sﬁ m
%00°004- ”aol.oow.e ~ Toooos'e 1000 | loowss ” 000 - esuedxg punoiByoeg Aunoes - 509245z | 1
%Lz |(S1'1EQ'0L) 00'Z.t'08 | cgove'ee 00'902'9 1ve6e' 10uCD 83899y ALIN26S - 0ESZLSZ|
eBueyd % | ebueygg | jebpng [enuuy gLunc-gline || jeBpng | | epunr a T 1 11
|
_

610Z sunp
aduewopad Jebpng sso1 ' Jyoud
Hoduly spewaq)y 9|jIAsa)0EY D)

siseg jenusoy

61/90/11
W 1bia




N %riez  zzoveoz 00'008'8 zrovl'ee 00262 ~ Joose fjayes o)qng - suuoyun - 01080SE] ]
I %00001- (00'000°02) mo.ooo.om - 00°0 ] .8.83 _ 1000 - IEu.a.wl m..wum _ac_Eﬁ.gm«mmm_ | J_ _
%LEGT | 00906 00'550' 00'6G6'0% * looosz | 000 [eujuLIa] - SN B SeNg - 052Z0SE _
1 %teve 61L°01'Z 00°804'22 61'818'Z5 | 4.8.%«& 7 |89'L10'r ~ suopeounwwo) AousBiows . 00ZZ0SE _| [
¥ %0000 voELLOy 000 YOBLL'OY |00 000 B B ¥eu) [euoHuer - 051.208€ | [
w8l |(orgezon) 100°000'2 | loevosL | loosoz | oo eoueUBUIEA VAV - 0L1Z0SE| | | .
[ %9g'88- (00'08Z'v¥) 00°000'05 | |ooozz's 00°000'g 00°0kY eJueuejULely SPId - Z0LZ0SE
S  %E6ES 90°0£2'8y _8.@@ _ |o0viszey B .Hmo.mmvs ) |6Lsgv'el _ ) @sc_us_@m . pe_.m.emm ] |
%60'LL-  |(SOPSE'S) loo'gez'at | |ceovezy 00'020'% wzzss | 9uBUBjUIRl JOJe|eIsT JOIRASIT - 001Z0SE
%6e'Se  (LO0LE'LL) 00Z51'81 66°182'9 100'028'L e | fyejeg 21ang - uogeaNp3 - 050205¢
m.\iw.g 188 ooove'z _ wizze mco.mmw _ 8Z'16€ __ soo4 Buissesoud jlosked - 5z0Zoge| | |
4 %991 80'26€'72 00°280'vE | lso'BLy'sg looeesz | |ozvis ) - seyddng [epouer - 010Z0¢ R
‘%ozSs-  |(6s6sw'L) 00006 | |1vOvo'g | looszyt | oo B ~ soueuajuiel wiei oBeBBeg - gozlose] | | |
%zg'le |(1'SBY'Y) |oozssoz |sgog0'9L |00'0z2") 19'196 - eoueldwod VHSO - 0s9r0se| | |
%vots-  [(006e0s)  |ovoos's lo0'Lav'y (000 ~ |ooo -  Buideospue jeuuuoy - 009kose| | |
f %oe-  (S0'ES0'sh) 00°000°05 |g6ov6'y looeol'y | |soeso't | . eBeublg jeujumie) - 0sS10SE| | |
%EELS  |(b8G26°)) 0000¥'Z | levvzol 00002 000 o uopesuqes Buipiep - £05L05E| |
© %prse- (ezzel'ol)  |ooossl | wnes . loozezr | [oo0 | i o dwejey - zoslose| | |
%eLYE-  (rL9r'?)  |00000ZL | legeeLy | Toooos looo feujus) - 'yaung dinb3 Julew - 05vL0SE
O %056 ¥2'902'20} 0080520 | |¥TYLI60Z | | 00°656'8 yoTHEZE o [euIULID ), - BOUBUBIUIEY - 0SEL0SE |
 lwzess l(eeLL0'0) 100°096'9 voze8 | |oooss geeop B © IBujueL ~ jeAcweY MOUS - 0SZI0SE 1 -
Cwvo0 | 8oLl 00°005'6€ | |souzigee | |oossze Y1€62'C [eulwIe) - osusdx3 eourinsul - 00Z}0S8. | | i
%SYOL | 99'viey l00°0z6'0% 99v6l'St | |000ME levorze | - © esodsig-un - oobiose, | | o
 lugrsL | 85°926's ~ 00°000'0E | |egses'es lovoosz | levessti- | o leulwIo] - JORARINN - 054L0SE| | -
Jw%ezs  |(1le09l) loozi'or | [eolsss looazs | pesos leujuua) - euoydeleL-inn - 00L40SE| |
%6LLOr | G@'6Z00L 00005 | |seezszt | oo | |ooo ~ eujuuey - suedoidnN - 090405€ | 0T ]
| wsoel- (sz'19v'5) 00'000°0% | lereesve | | looo o [euluLIBL - O-BN - 050105¢ | _ a -
%ST'E \Zh9e's 00°000'S9L LevoeioLl 00'0S2'€L €5°120'1 feujuLIs| - 2L)38(Z-IHN - 000408E
| %0L9s-  (peoge'cy) 00°1.2€'69 loryisez 7 l00'082'g |veeeeve- [eujuLIB] - JuBWBIRSY - 0SE00SE | T
| lwe (rz0s0')) oolesz st | 0Bz levest feujuuio) - qes|q 1 Y/qesIq LS - 008005€| ]
| %lve (evirs)  oovegol BETTD I Toooss ovesy |  iewjuuoy - eouBINSU| O)17 - 0SZ00SE| |
A %irse-  (007269'8) 00'v99'2v2 [ (00zL6'681 [ ?o.oom.& 0c'vos'sL Ieuiuie] - ddngrsu) YEeH - 00Z00SE ..
%ba b _aw.mww.a 00°'Sr2'08 lLese'oL loosze’s | |zLezo'iL ~ leuuwey - sexej jloiked - 051005 | [
d %esuL  egsera 0000009 EET @mo.m%.u | lesezn - [EUULIBL-BUIIBAD - 5000gE | i I
%68 ?v.wﬁse 00'66E°186 95°065'€68 00'698'28 e LGP LEL [eujuue] - seBe - 00000S€ |
[ - ] [ . _ ] N N sesuedxg jeuuue)| | | 7
| eBueyd %, efueyd$ | jeBpngenuuy | | gLunr-glInr | | JeBpng gLunp | - [ ] _ _

610Z sunp
aouewlIouad Jobpng sso g Joid
Moduy apJewaqgly aflIASaNoMEY)

siseg [eniooy
61/90/L4

NN J8R




Moduty ajiewaqy ajjiasapoey)

_ 7 9U'829'8v2'- | |80vLL'€68'T- | |90°€8808L- B2 | euioouizeN]

— _ | _ - - — - i (.
7 100°000°9€6'€- VOVERIOSY | 00000'8ZE- | vou9l'GLs B  owoduopoleN
- [ B | = — | I . — i |
| | 00°000°926°C To.mmzmm.v | 000008 | veseVsLL ) ) esuedx3 Jeyio _sﬁ_,
%00°004 B6ELL'L 00'0 l8eELL'L | looo 000 382,6 0 jesodsiq uo 5507 - 0L6c0sh| |

M %S 0L'PP0'vSY 00°000'986'E | | 0L'WK0'0BET | |00°000°8ZE Tm.sr.mk . :o_ﬁ_tosw:o_ﬁ_oena@

A osuedxg ._a:uo_
I 1 l., A N I
; 000 1919zZ'6T 00°0 . 000 owoou| JaYQ [ej0y| _
 |woo00r | zgesese 1000 Z9ZLE'Se 00'0 00'0 a s1988Y Jo [esods|q uo Ueg - Loosovz | |
|%0000L | GLZeg't loo0 TFN%m 000 00 o spevooid E_e_o soueInsU] - 00ZP0Y - i
7 swoou) 1ey0 _

_ | I o 1 _ h o N o o o o “esuedxg/ewoou] ._.2_«0.|
%98'€80 | 60BKC'I8Z)  |vzrzezer €6'6LL'20Y') pe9LL L 28'208'566 ) o ~ owooy em.._v._o ~oz |
%9BEL-  |(SL6vL9lZ'l)  |001ZIrers ST'L26'795'L 00'659'¥52 6V'S8Y'SLL N ~ esuedxy _23
%icor J:&.ﬁﬂ@ 00'665'956' 10922927 00'LL8'ELZ S.'82.1'822 - ‘sesuadx3 jeujuuey | _sﬁ 1NN
%0001 | 0zLLL'E 00'521'e 0z'ZSe'e 00'092 000 ‘suopeiedq - jeAeay - 001ZZ5E *
%0909~ (000802 lo0'ose's . |ooozey ~ looisz looo suogesedo - uonedNP3 - 050ZZSE = 1]
%2088~ (00°€29) (00062 loozzr 0089 000 | ~ esusdxg Bumoy - -0sezIse 1 _ T
%S9'9- (29ser'2) 00°009'0¢ eevoL'vE 00'050° 69088’z Reges o11qnd - [eAe1L - 001Z1SE | _
19%08°08- (0L pryD) |"8.0|om.m| 0 .om.mma.r loozor __ szie | o - seyddng ST - 0£02Z15¢E .. ,| ._| .
| %9g°61- ((e0r152°2) _oo.mom.: .ﬁm.mmw.m 00656 _ ..mv#ow B N baﬁm.slﬁ—mm,_ |

A %020 (LZLivOR) 00'999'96¢ \6z°v61'95€ 000 | |eesoe- [eujuLIB | 0IAIBS 3T8Q HOOZ - LOBEOSE 7
|%00-001 _mw.vmm - |sees - Colvez soe4 pieg ypes) eBuno - tsggose. | | ; _

D %bs0s  (e6EES'cOL) 000096YL | |20990°%k l00ver'z €058 - ebunouejuep sseussng . ogogose| | | | |
|%ge 6z (00'826°2) 00°000°0L | ve1902 |00'928 000 _ ~ SI0pesSsEqUIY/edIAIeS JOUIOISN - 0Z0E0SE | ) |

| sbueudy, eBueys ¢ 106png jenuuy | | gLunr-glinr | | jebpng sLunp | B D | |_

| | — RN
6102 sunp
aouewLIOlIad JoBpng $507 % oI wisve pnisoy

WV it:6



$I3U10 10} M0JIST “Y40 pied puog auQ

5399014 U0 pasn

sdQ |ewop

1pne pua-JeaA 1e paxyooq a|qeAlsIy
pasn spuny J4d

$IN03s0)D 10y Suntepy .
S3|(BAI22 31B]S pUE Y4

sdQ jewuoN|

ueiD) 33e35 3UISO[D UIYM SA|0S31 O]
sliig @8puquay Joy de) 03 spuny adesano)
sdo [ew.oN
aunr ul predaad j0u wniwaid wayiuy
0ZAd 104 aunr u) pied saia1j0d 3aueINsSU|
0CA4 10} dunf ui pied saidijod asueinsu|
suonessdQ WOy ysed uj aseasdu)

%ST'E (s8097)
%Sy~ (0€T'ST9)
%10 112
%58°0- (181'6£E)
%L1'78  187'S8
%560 1598
%YE 6 (v61'27)
%05'7T S20'sL
%00°00T | £€9°4ST
%vvLS-  (669'658)
%0Z'6T | T#8‘S0T
%YESE 165'6L
%z0°'ZE 086'66T°T
%00°0 0
%LETL  799'8E
%0596~  (6£1°SS)
%8Y'LIL  E9TE
%V6TTSY-  §H9°9T
%0v'8y | 685'98T'T
% 28uey)

papasu se suoneue|dxg

£76'86 820'SLT
6SY'LEYET 685°7STYT
SL5'SST 8SE'SST
8€9'E98'6 611°€02°01
¥9068T €8LE0T
8€0'¥Z6 L8€'ST6
0T079Z 07167
z61'18¢ £9T'90€
L£9'L5T 0
966'9€9 $69'96t'T
1908'5L9 96'995
£0568C TT6ETT
L69'Lv6'Y BILLYL'E
88T'ET6 '88TET6
L9V'v9E S08'SZ€
000'7 6LTLS
TIL'E 8Y
16092 5S-
T7T'8€9'e TSO'TSY'T
aunr Aey

6T0C Jea) [edsly
UoNISOd 19N JO JUaWIRIS

Awoyiny Loduly sjrewaqy-ajjiasanoey)

syassy |ende)

sjusjeainb3j ysed pue ysed
Spun4 puog anuaAay
S}9sSY paILIISay
$19SSY JULIND)-UON

$19558 PAjILIsal |B10
:MOJIST VYA Ysed
SIUBWIISDAU|
spung puog snuaAnay
sjuajeainba yseo pue yse)
Spun4 juawapnuy ajels
S9J(BAIDIAY
pung sjueuaquielpl v10 ysed
pung jeisusg 34) yse)
pun4 343 ysed
spung adaey) Ajjoey Je) jejuay
$3|(eAI9IIY
sjuajeainbs ysed pue yse)
:spung agdaey) Ajped Jaduasseq
LETEANEREN]
sjuajeainba yses pue yses
spun4 jende)
:513sSY pa1dNIsay
$}ISSY 1ua4in) UON

$1955Y pajpuysalun [e1o0L
Spund paiIlIsay wol4 ang
15U-3|(BAISI3J SJUNOIJY
sasuadx3 piedaid
Ajjoed Je) [ejusy - Adueinsu) predaid
oueinsu| piedald
sjuajeainbs yses pue yse)
151955y pajpdsasn
+S1a5SYy JU244n)
S}ossy




800061 9L6°LL9CZT 896°L8V'TTT SMOJINQ Pa3.lajaQ pue s1assy |ejol
%00°0 | S0Z'TS 9/2'0vY 1£0°88¢€ $32UN0SBJ JO SMOJJIN0 PaLIa4ap [e10]
%00'0 98€'9¢ 8Z¥'8se [Tva'zze SUOIINQLIIUOT UOISUS4
|%00°0  618'ST 6T¥'sT 0096 SuoINGUIUG) 93d0 )17 wue) dnoig
1%00°0 0 0€b‘95 0gb'9s 193p Jo BulpunyaJ uo sso}
$924n0S8Y 40 SMO[JINQ palidjaqg
%ET0- | €08L€T 669°LET°TLT £68'660'TZT S13sSv |eyoL
%070~ (2v0°Lpp) E7S'7S9'E0T 1065°66070T $S19sSY JUaLIN)-UON |e10]
|%0Z°0- (z96'0LE) 009°€S5°€0T 795'7T6'€0T (*a2dap ‘nae yo 3au) s1assy |eyide) [er0)
qeyay My uoN__E_%u_xmo.o {82£'L00°€T) S9/°71TT Trs'ser’st ss2J30.d U1 uo1INIISUO)
| | %00°0 €S €€6'09 0809 uonezijowe pue ued Ja1selp
| 9eyay My pazijende) %5t°0- | E9E0E9TT | ZIEWYTC8 6176'£05°69 uonelda.dap o 13u
“uawdinba pue syuawanosdwi ‘sSuipping
%000 0 065°0€7'67 065'0€2'6T pueq




%ET0-

%L0°0
%059
l%LT'T

%TTO-

%000
%000

%18'€-

o %000
w %000
W %000
w %000
Ucwuum®> Jje —uwums_ﬂm uwm Wmmcn_. %000

%ESET-
|%EY'£6"
sfeulelay Bunweyd %000
(%000
pus-1e34 1e pajsnipe s198 sy 1| %000

%TC €~

puimiie] 799°g ‘suildie Jayloue pue uedjod ysz PIO %000
pus-seaA e paisnipe s338 siyL %0070

pus-ieaA 1e paisnipe 5198 syt %00°0

HTE'S

%
papau se suojjeue|dx3

800°06T

685°20T

TY8'EVET

[{ozg'916)

[(o¢g'61£)

{0oL've)

(000°7)

6IT'65T

(v£9'07)

L TIv'ET

0002

0
o
{980°1S)

98€°7TC
191°S2¢
0

‘o

(s2£°7)

(€65°2t)
0
80665

| 9088z
|(80E°TET)

9dueyd

9£6°LL9°CTT  896°L8Y'ZZT
ET6'0¥C9TT SZE'EETOTT
8T6'895'€ ££0°922°C
S09‘T0TCT T86°LTO'ET
06€£'0£5°00T 199z°068°00T
|S6ETPT S60°9T¢
000'%T 100091
£99'T829 8¥STZT9
85780y 85¢°70T'y
S6°v68 £€5'T/8
000°L¥T 000°0¥T
788'vEL 788'vEL
v9°0ST | T¥9'0ST
LIT'PST'T |z0T's0Z'z
0SZ'vb9'T Y98 TZY'T
€55°0€T 76€'s
£50'T6¥ LS0'T6Y
88T'€T6 88T'ET6
£51'6 12221
|eeg'sss L1865
£99°Z€ 199°2€
8ST'6LT 6¥C'6TT
[4:: 4441 9L0'%6
L1182 PEVTSE
aunr Aepy

uoNIsod 13N pue SMojju| pa.lajaq ‘sanijiqer jeol

uoNISOd 13N [e10)
‘peiouIsalun
1palLISaY

s19ssy [eydeD Ul pa1saAu]
uoilisod 18N

$asuadxd uoisuad
sasuadx3 g3d0 - o417 wua) dnoun

$22IN0SIY JO SMmOojju| paldiajag

santjiqer| [ejoL
sanIfiqer wsun)-uop |ejoL
Anjigen uoisuad 19N
ANliger1 9340 #dueansu| wua] dnolig 19N
sueo 83pug YOAA 01 ang
9DIAIS 1020 YHA 900Z d/N
IUNO3JS|P puoq
pazilJowleun Jo 1ou ‘9)qeAed spuoq snuansy

:S9131|1Ger] JU3LIND-UON

SI9SSY PaloNIISIY Wod) SaNjIqer] Jua.n) jeo)]
3|qeAed syunody (eyde)
s|qeAed adeuieiay
Spung palalIsalun o3 ang
152J31u| panJdy
:539sSY PaLISAY Woyy djgeieq

S1955Y Palo1IISaIun WOy SINLIGer] JuaLIN?) [B10]
spuoq *pad/dap A1lndas d4/y
SAR3| PANIIIY
JjoJAed penioy
9|qeAed syunoddy
1S]95SY PaIIMISAIUnN wold djqedey

uonisod 19N pue smojju| paiiayaqg ‘sanijiqer

6T0T Jea) [edasy
UOI)ISOd 13N JO JUDWIILIS
Asoyiny Joday sjIrWaq)Y-3)|IAs8n10eY)




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Financial Statements (unaudited)
As of Sept 30, 2019



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Profit & Loss Notes
As of Sept 30, 2019

$15K and 10% change

Expenses:

A. Various Expense Line Items:--There are line items that are under budget. These expenses
vary and it is not unusual for the expenses to be incurred later in the year or at the end of
the budget cycle or to be much lower than budgeted.

B. ARFF Equipment: -- year-to-date expense: $32,862 Budgeted: $7,500
The expenses for this line item occurred early in the fiscal year and were to outfit the
entire ARFF personnel with the appropriate attire.

Net Income

September year-to-date net income before other income = $356,453.



G jo | abed

adueulioiad J3abpng ssoT g Jjoid

Hodily ajewaq|y ajjAseoleY)

[%ser 87 z60'F 0065 b 000022 8rz67e 00059 1E6IT L UIPY - SLURISAQ - 0500059
%22 (rL9LP'S) 00°€HP'TSL looesszor | |ogesi'iel | 00Bi8'ls |zrgel'og sanensIuWpY - sobep -
| [ [ [ sesuadxg sApensUIWPY |
asuadxg
%00 eieee #0'80'829'8 AT YE-TIRA oLeLliLe 160°266'502 26'825'822 13014 Ss0ID
%00 | erzze ¥0'680'8,9' 1Z18L'9LL'T SLELLLILT B80°265'50. 26'825'82. swaoujeyor| |
%0 | 1eezL0l P0'899'9EET LO°287'1ES 26091255 19°GkL'LLL 16682 ) SINNIAZY TYNINNAL e30) |
%00 - YO'Pr8'L0 L0'L9P'S) LO'19b'G) 19'861'S 19°€51'S [eded peInquIues SUINY - 0001020
|op°op | 001822 lo0000'vZ 00°000'9 00'182'8 ‘00000'z lo0'gss'z abunoelusy ssouisng - 05erOpE
|%0°0 |- l00'9zp's 00'698't '00'698'} ‘00°eze lo0ezs UOISS32U0D WLV - 00PEOVE
|%50°004- {{10°008) 100000 10°'00G 000 19991 l000 [eULIS | SNOBUE|I9DSIN - 0OSEOVE
|%g0z | vosz9'e 0000008} |66°667'2€ £0'SL1'6E £EEER0L 196GE" kL SUOISSEIUOD PIDPOOS - OSTEOVE
|o667e- (5pp9'L) '00°000'02L |Lo00s'zk 0s'ss8or | /9991l lo0'szz'e BUISRIeADY - 0OZEOVE
%00 - ¥0Z55'6G [Lossepl 10888%L | | /9796 19796 23ea7 pUBT YLD JED [BJUSY - §SLEOVE
%00 - 00'000'vZ |00'000'9 | 000009 | |oooooz 100000z 5994 uonEIodsURIL PUNOIS - OGLEOVE|
%L 80'S8E'E 00%0L'70L'L loogszezz | |eo'lev'szz | oozer'rs vLs6s's2 anusASY JeD [BIUAY - 00LEOVE|
%Z0 Trve 00'569'95 bL85LYL | loresivt sz zL ey JsWasINqUIBY VS - S90E0VE
%00 9T 00705k 009/ | ars/ell 00T6L'e z6T6LE WN/F4 83IAIRS YV - 0S0COVE|
%00 AR |96'z95° 199 vZ998'291 | 9E'888'79l '80'962'S Z196T' s uSY BUIMNY - 000E0VE
. | i SINNIATY TYNINYAL
%Lz [(az:896'v2) 00°¥L'FOL'Y 00'9E0°'9LL'L p2°290'151°L 00Z10'Z6E 05°229'20F SANNIAIY ONBIIVd [210]
l%6erl | ozrew 00°00Z'} 00008 0L VEL 00001 05855 S99 SNOBURI[SISIN - 9L0LOVE
(%261 | oosez 00000°9 00005'} 00°G6.'L 00°008 00059 9319395001 ‘S)ULIad - Bupyed - GLOLOVL
wZT (96'769'52) 1007r6'969' 009ETVLL'L POLPS'BPL'L  00ZiY'lL6E 0061150 snuanay Buppreq
. . . . SANNIATY ONDIIY |
%L'g 9 19961 002LZ'285') loosLEvaE 9p'S586'S0F lo0'g01'8z) 98'209'6€} SANNIATY Q131N [er0) |
) 00°€05'T 00°00F 71 00°009'e 00°€04'9 0000Z'1 00'09z"} “quIISY |0)U0D $5890Y AILINDIS - GOIEOVT
%0004~ (00'00€) 001002 o000 | looo | o000t 000 PISLLIIY 9NUBABY SNOBUBI[BOSIN - 00SEOPT|
%9'SZL ' 80pes't 00'000'9 00°005° | soveete | oo00s 000 8BEMOl4 MYV - 0SZZOVT
%eZ (29'88€'8) |00'000'08F 00'000°0Z} eL119'9kL l00°000'0% eeosL'er snusAsy 04 - 00ZZ0VZ.
%6'8Z | vozoe's 00012'28 05208'1Z 1'501'8Z 052922 P1020'2 $894 PlRIMIVAUSY PUNCIS - DOLZOVT
%L'6T 15°68Y'L looa00'0z 10'000'S geESY'D 19'999'L Z6'88L 'Y SIOMBYD - LO0ZOVZ
%8y | vzeslLL 00Z9r'826 8r'SLLZET £4862°CrT £8'LLE"LL Li LV6E8 anuanay BuipueT susLY - 000ZOVZ
| . . S3NNIAIY a131NIY|
%0z (zo'00L') 100°100°00L |sz:000'sz roe8g'8l | zpece's B SANNIATY SAILVHLSININGY [2I0L |
%are 05'980'G 00°000'vZ 00000’ 05'980'L L 00000 £296'C awWoou| 1SaI9Y] - 000SOFL| |
%0001 (L0'064'8) 00°000'6E [lo0sz' | looo | o067 000 whid uoyowold B UOHRIAY YOUA - 00LPOPS |
%0001 g9z 000 looo |se'oz | looo looo Y oumyoel Buipusy - Zooyors|
%00 o'l |00°106'E 9z'5zL'8 |sz'ozs's Tr'806'z Zr'806°T JUBWSSINQUISY JEIS V1O - LOOVOLY|
%196 [(68pr'1) 00'004'9 66'725' L | loooe £€'805 000 aWwoou| SNoauE|2ISIN - 000FOYY _
. | | . SANNIATY FALLVULSININGY |
swoou)
| esuadxg/ewoau) Aleupio
abueyn abueyg yobpng jenuuy jobpng gLA 6l dog - Inp jobpng 6l dog .
% QLA $ala
6102 J1aquisydag

siseq [enuooy
61/90/11
Wd st




G Jo g afied

%000}~ (loooszh) 00'000'08 10005°Z1 000 L9991 000 PIaLIIY - [BAOWSY MOUS - 0SZLOSZ
BT LE 16TIS'E 00'008'2€ 0005%'6 |16z96'2) 00051 16028y PlaIY - asuedx3 souEINSY| - GOZLOSZ
% LT | zvze 0002y 00’50} izl 00'se 60'9F PIOWIIY - JOIeM-[HN - 051L0SZ
%620} 50'692'Z loo0ov'e 000012 'G0°S%EY 00002 8V'€99 PlowIY - suoydaja1-Inn - 004L0SZ
%096 | 89'6e8 |00000'9 00'005°L 99°'6€€°Z 00008 98'es L) Plewly - suedoid-InN - 0904052
%' 151 (sg'see’hL) l00-008'sz 00002°Z SEGEL Y 0000tz b 168} PILUIY - 5L39913-190) - 00DLOSZ
%S 1- (92021 0060t '9r 92209'H} 05 LEY'LL zvrlo8'e ¥6'829' PIaIY - JUsWeInaY - 0SE005T
(%6ZE oLis 00729 6b'S51 65902 8’15 65¥L PIBLHIY - qesid 1/qesIq LS - 0050052
%9b- (br68) loo"zes’2 10’856} 129981 19759 29'€65 PiSIHIY - 2oURNSU) 8417 - 052005Z
%67 (06'699'F) lo0'gs0'5ZL 0SbOZ'LE 09'V65°9Z 05'12v'0L 06'9/5'6 plalLlY - *ddng;'su| yieaH - 00200Z
%L9 B9Z16 00Zi1'es 00'G95°EL 69'LL1'L looevs'e Lz Pl - saxe [|o)Aed - 051005T
(%976 | 9e'596°, 006,88 '00'000°8 9E'595'5 L |o0000' \zzg98'T PISIHIY - SUILIBAD - LS0008Z
%82 | egeszel |00°90z'509 0095189} co'eer 18l [00'919'tk 1o'988'8Y plawly - saBEM - 0000052
I | M&M:UQKW —v_w_—.-_<
%E pE- (8 v91L'961) 002872922 STE0L'TLS 17'885°0/8 |s2-9zv'081 lezzoe’ 101 sesuadx3 aApenSIUIWPY [e10L |
V %998 {66'685'8E) 00081'821 66'¥rS ' 00'566'S EEBFE'TL 006.8 osuadxg ‘Asq 82108 JIY - 0982060 |
%G '86- (92'910'6) 00'009'9e lo00s1'8 [ZR¢ lo00s0'e ) s)ueA3 [eoads - 1982089 |
Y %bl (80'692'05) 00'05Z'58Y 05°Z1E'12Z1 TrEVO'LL log zev'op ALY 2suadXa UOROWOI] B "UIADY - 0982059
v  %E68- (6+06p'%S) 00°000°'7bT |66'666'09 056659 leeeeeoz lszvea'e 904 |euoissajold - 0582059
%0001~ (6v29) 00052 \6v'29 000 legoz lo00 esuadxg 3qeq peq - 0082059
%0001 2v° 159 000 000 |z 259 000 LOELL sesuadxg snoaue|[eosI - 092059
%Eb (2€182) 00080'9Z l66°615'9 |zo'8ez'0 eeeLlT LOPeZ' | sesuadx3 831n0seY URWINY - 052059 |
| %bze- (00'Z82) 0008t loooz8 |00's8s 00062 00922 590 Bupjueg - 0042059
%996 (€90r2) |o0002'L L0'Sey R 19111 000 ofelsod - 0592059
%L L9 (50'0z8) loo0ob'e 66022 |v6psz £e'857 ‘000 asuadxg Bugesy - 009Z099 |
%005 {(z1'00€) |o00or'z 00'009 |eg662 00002 zz6L Burddiys - 1952089
%0001 (6tze8't) loooee’z lsrzes’t looo £9019 000 Bugaxseyy sang g sang - 1522059
%0001~ l1g'002'2) |oozos'ol 150042 looo L1006 000 SANEASIIPY - ‘SANS @ SBNQ - 0522059
%6'9.- (Lgezh'y) loo'000'eZ L0°0s£'S los'aze't [9'916'L 000 BupexJe--jaaeL ), - L0LZ0S9
%P9 [(es'288'1) l00008°Z1 00'520' 02811 00520’} 000 SAeNSIUIPY - [9ABIL - 0012059
l%LEL- {(es002) loo'osg's 05Z9v'L 18'19Z' 05'28% 16°192'} asea juawdinbg - 0202059
loz9g- (69987 1) 00'655'901 9L'6€9'9Z 181911 ‘z6'6/8' 129192 asuadx3 1eIndwiod - 0902059
|%gz8- (100821 0008’8 L00ZHE 00°0/€ 19904 000 BARELSIUILPY - UOREINPT - 0SOZ0GO
e 1e 95651 00'000' 00052 95606 loo0sz leLooz 5904 Bussasoud [joaked - 5202059
|%z98- (00'9e2's) 00bF8'EZ 00196 00’572 |oo286't 000 sesuadx3 53130 - 1002059 _
ATy (v1086%) 00°00t'02 00°001's 9z6LL} |o0002') |s7oL salddng 800 - 000059 |
|%6°s zv'ezy 00'526'82 loz'1e2'2 89'099'2 lzroirz lese0s'z aAnNSIUILIPY - dsuadx3 Jnsul - 00ZL0SY|
%z Ty (L1'628'2) 00°'8b8'9e 66°LLLD Z28'788'c leezez'e |s0z01't aAgens|UIWPY - suoydajaL -4 - 0041089
%lg BL6YL 0062585 |ozzea'y) Sriee'sl lzriey lsg'zz1's aARENSIUIIPY - JUBWRINIY - 0SE05S |
%192 8T loozen (10861 62661 198 'ero9 unupy - qesig 17 /9esid LS - 000059
%9y | 89501 loovoz's loo'L0e'z |soo0r'z 00292 1z'Z08 SAgEASIUIWPY - 23UBINSU) 817 - 0570059
%58 | 1eees't |o0'ass'te 868507 loo'szz'ee £8'628'9 028609 sagesysiupy-ddngy'su) yyesH - 00Z00S9 |
%6a |(zersee'l) looess’te lo0'ss2'5L laLoge'pL 00°205"% €992 aAnensinwpyY - sexe) ||oed - 0510059
abueyy abueyy jobpng jenuuy 1ebpng a1A 6} dag - |np 1ebpng 6l dog .
%aALA | $aLA
6102 loquisydeg

aJuewWIOMad Jabpng ss07 9 Jj0Id

Hoduly sjJewaq|y a||IAsapoleyD

siseg [en1doy
61/90/L1
Nd v




§ Jo ¢ abeq

dduewIouad }abpng sso g Jyoud

Hoduy apewsaq|y ajjnsapoley)

%0°004- (52'861) 00'56L'e SL'86L 000 52'992 000 Bunyied - uonesnp3 - 0502051
l%e1E £5'651 ‘00000 00052 £5'606 00062 11992 $394 Buissanoud |loshed - 5Z0ZOSL
%z et (6t 26¥'1) 00°00€'€L 66'¥ZE'e l0s°288'1 lee80L'} 05°/88°1 fue syed) g abeubig-buplied - 1L00Z051
%6708 (oL626')) 000rS'6 009882 loe'ssy l00's62 000 Buped - senddng - 000Z05 1
|%6°92- (16'5802) 00°00£0¢ 006452 |60°6€5'S 00'625'2 80'0LLe asueusjurely ‘dinby Buplied - 0oyL0SE

%L'Z8- (bL'ShL'Y) 00°002'0Z 66'6¥0'S 8808 £€'€89°')L 000 sdajg/syioognuewened Bupued - LGELOGE

%6 TL 26'005'c 00°008°801 10°002°22 |es 00208 29'990'6 10'868'9 aoueuajUEl spunoid Bunped - 0geL0SE
%Ly 890’1 0000021 lo0"000'e leoovzy 00000} 198697 Bunybi 307 Bupped - 00gLoSE
%0001 [(10000'2) 000008 |10000%Z lo0'0 19'999 000 Bunjied - [erowsy moug - 0521051
%9z | egg0s 0098901 05129 legosee 05068 19621} Buppieq - asusdx3 soueinsu - 001051

%02 sl 00008 loo's2 8roL 0052 8062 Bupped - se1eM-IRN - 0511051

%2'GL 16'69F 00°000°ZL |o0'000'e | 16690 00°000'} #0568 Buppled - suoydejel-1in - 00410G1
%994 z3e) 00 0r loooL't BL'6T6 00°0.€ 00°'LLe sB1 Bupised-un - L0L0S1

%E T l(s6'002'2) 100°045'0F lsrzvioL lps1e8's £9°08€'E 16'212' Bupiied - uawainay - 0§£00§H

%.'9g- (s2151) 00'%59°L [steLt vi1ez £9°LEL 086, Bupyed - qesia L/qesia LS - 0080051

%8'02- {(zz188) 00°08€'9 [Lo'ses't 62€9Z'} 19'1€8 S9'LEY Bunjied - saueinsu| 3y - 0520054

%07 looz0z'L) [00°8yF'54L |oozoe'sz 00'099'82 00496'6 002226 6Guppeq - "ddngr'sul yieoH - 0020051

%E'S 99'esk l00e68'se loozis'e 99'596'8 00'09b'Z BE'E95°2 Bupjred - sexe] jjoiked - 05L00G1

%9GYT 15'981'6 00'9£8'64 ‘00008 15'58T'EL 00°00%'L ler'szo'e Bupped - SWIIBAG - 050005

%10 260LL loo'sie'vee 00'962'90} 26901901 loo0ze'0e S1'9ZL'0€ 6Gupjsed - sebep - 0000051

sosuadxg Gunped

%LT (lo'z1z'e) l002L2'285") 8.'68¥'88¢ PANAZAN ) |sz'1ze'a1L 88'L18'9L1 sasuodx3 plauty [ejoy

%000}~ (L0'00£°)) 00°008'9 10'00.'L 000 29'99g 000 asuadxg puncsbyoeg Aunoag - 509zLsz| |

%9'9L (65°1.20'8) 00°02)'2y 15Zr5'0L 6040’2 [2ivis'e [ze0Lr'T 101U00 $5999y Aunaag - 05GZLST|
%0004~ (o0'084) 00'000'€ 00'052 000 |ooosz ) sleusjely Jewzey - 0SrZLST
|%0°001- (05'281'7) 00'055'8 05 LELZ 000 loszhe [00'0 suueald - SZVZLST
|%6°16- (to'szr'e) 00°006 71 L0'6eL'e 00'00€ A 000 solddng Bujuiel] 444V - D0VZLST

%Z'8EE Th'Toe'se 00°000'0¢ 00'005'L |zrzes'ze 100005 legZIE'S Juewdinb3 444V - 09527152

%00 (Loo) 0022212 92'90€'S |s2-908's z6°89L'L loo0 S92 9ouRUGIUIEIN ZHIN 008 - LSSE052T
%565 (zs1iz'y) 00'v0e'se 10'920'2 6798z 198582 £8'756 23uel|dwoy [B)UBWIUCIIALT - 0GEEOSZ

%0004 (00°5.L8) 00'005'L loosze loo0 00’5zl 000 sastolexg Asusbiswy - 0OLLose
wlEk 9€'96Z 00'8Z8'6 |00 25tz loeesLz 00618 72092 PleWy - suojun - §0DE0SZ
%0004 [(b2'808) l00ge0'z |v2-805 ) 85601 000 PIRIHIY "dng '@ sanq - 0522052

%G94 \vz9zs'2) loo0szL |66795'e 5888 ££'881°} G1°8E8 e3uBUAJUIRL [SARLL - QOLZOST

%E'EL- (66'929'2) |00°809'F | l66°159' 00626 WA 00646 aduBUIUIRY - UOHEINDT - GS0Z0SZ

%E'LT 95654 lo0000'e 00052 85606 00052 €992 seay Buissasold |10shed - GZ0Z05Z
| iomias - ) 000 000 000 000 PI2lIy-aoueUS)UIEY 911G - 05610GC
rrm 950k’ L 100FP0'LS 107192°C) 51021 |19€s2y |09Ep9's 11O pue seo asuedx3 o|oIUsA - 00SLOST |
(%t 8- (¥8'LEP'E) loo002'51 66'726'C 50°'e6h |ee's08’} lozveL PRI - Yaind ‘dinb3 ‘Jure - 0gpL0SZ|
%20 0Z'126'8 00°00L'9LL '00'520'62 0Z'9b6'LE lo0s29'% lespeL'zL wawdinb3 plEwY UL - 00FL0SZ| |
(%01 1- (21518) 0005221 1 LEr'Y vezze'E [2ves8') |vesst 20UBUSIUIE SPUNOID PIBIMIY - LGELOSE|
%165 (o '08€"0L) 0008104 66'PYS 2L 6L'v8L'L e are's (12099 PloWIY - aauBUBjUIRl . 0SELOST|
%0°001- [(etrv61'e) 00'8LL°2L 8P ¥6L'E loo'o |e8v90's looo eoueuajueyy Sunybr - 0oEL0SZ |

abueyy abueyo jabpng |enuuy 1ebpng gLA 64 dag - |np 1ebpng 61 dag .
% QLA $aLa
6102 Jaquisydeg

siseg [en12oy
6L/90/LL
Nd sty




S Jo ¢ abeq

%l lE (rLozL'e) 00851 EE lsesTe 1£891'S LVE9LT 96521 suojjestunwiwiod Aousbiawis - 00ZZ0SE
%LTL LL'gsp's 00'000°0€ 000052 [11seezL 00005z 000 30UBUSIUIEIN YAV - 0LLZ0SE
(%68 (100811 1) 00°000°05 [Lo0os'zL |oo0ze's 19991y 00°0rF SouRUSIUIEW SPIS - Z0LZOSE
|%g sy Zr'618'04 00005'%6 |00's29'eZ |zrvibve 006282 0b'€S6 SOUBUSIUIEI DVAH - LOLZ0SE |
%G 08" (rrLs'y) 00'061'65 05 /6L'%L €0°€8Z'01 0526’y POtrS'T adueuajurely Jojejessl 10jead|s - 00LZ05E
%159 l(ere0s'w) 00°'568'82 lorezzs looozs'e 6°L0v'Z 000 13388 lland - uopeanp3 - 050205¢
l%eLz | 85651 |o0-000'e o005, 85606 00052 £4'992 s394 Buissedoud josfied - §Z0205C
1%G'€9 | ez0gs'9 looz18'er | lozpse'ol 61621 Zr'159' 02’502 sonddng |euonuer . gL0zose |
%629 l(oape’l) looosz'11 151862 |ser880'L 1166 8958} soueusjurey wiel) ebebbeg - 00.L05¢
%912 6L zz2'Y) |oozo0'ez 6006 loz29t £8'996'+ 6z 12t asue)dwod YHSO - 099408¢ |
%69 (1s'8v2'1) |o0ovs's [loge8't log'9es 19199 000 BSuidesspue [euwia) - 09106
%.'06~ [(18'899') |oo000'sZ | lessbze 81185 £€'€80'7 89'0€ abeub|g [eujuuay - 055106¢
%0004 {(00009) |oooor'z 00009 looo 00002 000 uoeoLqed Guipiopm - £051L05¢|
%601 [(00'508) |oovos'sl | oogze'y loooz)y 00THS'L 000 dwerey - 20g105¢
%0001~ (66v2L'T) |oo00s°0L le6veLT lo0D £6'806 000 leuia) - yaingd ‘dinb3 Juiep - 0gpL0sE. |
%6 H{oovoo's) |00"00s°28 | sz Wrorzzs 19162'L £0°289'8 [PUIULIDY, - OUBUBIUIRY - 0SELOSE|
%0001~ 15ze'L) looole's 15ZSh'L 000 L1 v8p 000 [PUIULIG) — [EAOLIZY MOUS - 0SZLOGE |
%6'ET 98'9LF'Z |o0'005" 17 le628'0L Se'158'Th £e'85v's 56282y leuiuws) - asuadxg aoueansuy - 00ZL0SE |
%S pE- {v8°210'9) |oo0z2'59 ‘00'0ep' 21 90°CLy'LL 00018'G S6'EBE'Y lesodsig-mn - 094108¢|
%6'ZE | ozesu'e 1000005t 00°05Z' 41 0T8b6'L |ooosz'e larzory [eUIULIS L - JOIBM-IBN - 051L0GE|
%LEL- (z6'600) l00°000'z4 00000 80°065'Z |oo000'L lzesie feuius) - suoydejo - - 00LLOSE |
%0004~ (66'¥29) 00005 66729 000 |ee-soz 000 leuluIa L - suedoid-inn - 090408E
|%0001- (65'666'6) 00'000°0F 66'666'6 000 leeeee's loo0 leuIa L - 1O-1BN - 050L0SE
9612 oLesl'e 0000008} 00°000'Gt al'egL'sy |00'000'S} TLe6L 'L [eUlWI9 - SU3IBIT- BN - 000L0SS
|96 (1z's16) 00'805'LL 002’61 621981 |o0'65H'9 loo-908's leuiuo] - JuswaInay - 0SE00SE
[%2v2- (8z621) 00'806' 66922 vz ups £8TPT 16'8L1 jeuuIB) - qesia L 1/qesiq LS - 008005¢
%z (2269) 00'559'H} lsreleT 86787 ST16 zr'vee feulua | - 23uBINSU] 24171 - 052005E
%6°Z1- |90 201'8) 00€LY'Z5T loz'eo1'ee |oz-ges'ts ZYYED'IT 0L i) reunwse) - ddngy'suj yyeeH - 00Z00S¢
%E 0 [(19'69) |oo081's8 l00'€66'2Z lse'ezs'zz 00'602'9 62828, leujuua | - saxe] jjoifed - 051005E
%0 HLL | 19Z89'EL |ooges'ts 000008 19°289'1Z 00°000'F 99'6v5'9 [2UILIS | -BUNNIDAQ - LSO00SE
%S0 [a1-age'h) 00'8¥6'2L0'} 00°21Z'062 'z8'8z8'g8z ‘00'616'ZE 96'96€'66 leujuiss | - sebep - 000005€E
sasuadxg |eunuia]
%g'oe- (65'598'vE 1) PrrIE'erL'T Z6'581'THS £6°02E'LLE |rorzzr'sal 6.28Y'EZL sosuadxg Bupped [ejoy |
Y %9l (vh1p2'9z1) 00'000°062 00°005'281 98'85.'09 00°005'29 90'€25'eZ 6L0Z uoisuedxg Bupied eoepns - Zoggogh| |
%00 - ¥9'850'p9 000 000 looo looo Buppied 8210188 1990 ¥00Z - 108E0SL
|%00 - og'oLE'esl 0z'628'5h 0z'628'5k lorosz's) lovazz'st Supiied 891A198 199Q FLOZ - 008E0S)
%0001 (00'15) 00402 00'Ls 000 o021 lao0 asuadx3 199 peg - 05LE0GL
%L'904- (00ze) 00021 l00°08 00°z- looot lo00 HoUS B JBAD - GOLE0GE
'%pg- (z5°€€5'e) 00'000'02Z 6666675 |10'90p'Ls eeeee'sl leoer0'al saa4 pie IpaiD Bupised - 001E0SL
%8'96 |(ss°€69'1) 00°000'2 | |eseprs 1095 €685 1095 Bupiied-suuonun - 000E0SE
%0004~ [(os°226'1) loo0L6's 05" 21"t looo 05°Z61 000 Bupjred-esuadxg se[olyen - 00£20SE
%0001 (6671 1L1) |oo'spy 66°LLL loo0 ge e 000 Bupjied - ‘sqng g seng - 0522054
%0001~ (10'528) loo0os'e 10528 ‘000 19167 000 Buppied - [eaeiL - 001Z0S1
aBueysy abueyy 196png [enuuy jobpng QLA 6L dog - Inr 196png sl dag
 %aw $aLA
6102 Jaquaydog

aJueWLIOA }9Bpng SS0T 9 J1J0id

Hoduly ajiewaq|y ofliAsaopEYD

siseg [eniooy
61/90/1LL
Wd sv'v




§ Jo g ebeg

OV'9ETZLY b 6L0LE'29} | 60°265'89.- £1'500°'6¥€- 01L'628'€L 1 |awosu joN
00°080'vES - 00°0ZS'€E L L- $£'0S0'6ZL L~ 00°0ve' 28 Lo'Geg’ L8 8WodY) 12O 10N
%0004 (24wl 00'080'vES'Y 00'0Z5°eE L") £8'505°€E L' 00'0v8°22€ 19'SER'LIE yezyowy @ uoneigaideg
asuadx3 soqi0
%0001 | 6vssp'e _ |6tgsr's 000 SP28901d WIR[D 3IURINSY| - 00ZHOYS|
| [ ewoou] oy
asuedxg/ewoou| 1anQ
| %6 pghL- PP EPT06E _eu.nvn.s _ 61°06.'ee- _mu.nme.%n _ |1z vea'se 15'900'708 swoou| AreutpIg J1aN
%184 (56'026'68€) VY IbZ'oL9'8 9v'185°051'2 15°099'09.' 78'291'9.9 \¥'225'%2S asuadx3 jejoL
%L (267729'05) 00'€29'299°T 15202'£L9 ¥G'625'929 1126221 10'598'Z81 sosuadxg feulnal [ejoL
%0001 (r2'e62) 00'6/L'e vL'e6. 000 85'¥9T 000 suonesadQ - |eARlL - 001225
%0°004- (15 2e8) lo00se's 15268 000 16z 000 suopesadQ - uoyeonp3 - 050Z25E
% 0€- [(05'29) |00052 05281 loo0gl 0529 000 asuadxa Bumoy - 052Z15¢
%61 [(28'571) looose'se logze8'2 £9'169'2 052192 00'0 Kageg aand - joAeiL - 0OLZLSE
|%0°004- (66'662'01) l0000Z' 17 66'662°01 ) geeEy'e 000 ABojouyds) Majes onand - LOZSE| |
| %5 98- (52265) 00°005'9 10529} 9z'780'} 19195 06'6v seiddng SIS - 0£0ZHsE |
|%o'se PLBELT 00°002°94 oS SLEL6'D | 1916} ) fageg - 000zZ15¢E |
%0001 £2672 000 000 ‘ereeT 000 lzees s394 p1e Hpa) ebuno - Lgogose
%2 1z zer's) 00°002'6Z |66'662'L TL198't ‘eeeer'T ‘9968 afiunoelusy ssouisng - 0608058
%0001 |(65'666) |o0000' |66'666 looo geeee 000 qUIV/adIAIS JBW0ISND - 0ZOLOSE
WLt [lezz) |oo0ov'0L | L0009z lozive o988 0L69LT Asopes Jljand - sunoyu - DLOEOSE
(%00 [ - looo lo0o | oo 000 000 waysAg Buibed [euua) - 00EZ0SE
%0004 Hrsevs't) l00's21'e pLEYS'L | looo 851G 000 [euuLIa) - SGNG @ Senq - 052Z0ST
abueysn sbueyg 196png fenuuy J96png gIA gl dag - inp 196png gl dag
| wata $aLA .
610Z Joquiaydeg

aduewWIONad J9Bpng ss07 8 J1Joid

Hoday apewaqly s|jiasayoeyd

siseq [erusay
61/90/41
WNd sty




55013 J0U-ONUBASL S[YRUOISSIOUO)

VITLI8Y  00T'EIY  T99'IST'S  LIS'RVO'D 96L6I0L TEL0S89  L6V'SSTL  SELI9I'g P3YE8L'S S6+°615°6 LTT'166'6 %S LTT'166'6  001°9S¥'01 %I 60S°126 6TLLYOY »PNUIADY 4V IRy
BLE'SLE  EOLTOS  OI'I9S  OTTBEY  6860L9 698699  SLY'LOL S8LTIL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 960°080°1 Pr88LY'1 66LOPLT %ST 66LOVLT 199000  %EIl £ET'6S1 O11°6L1 DTT '‘Spuimpn
N2y /2304242 /pooy
186'908°C  1I€6TV'T  TTHOPST 69€°L69'T SOV'198T T6EIV6'T  THSIIIE |$34 744 981°05€"E 909°L80°€ 890°8C1Y %IT 890°8TL'F  0LS'OFO'S %61 EP6'ELE 986°chy png oy
TS6'809°L  €V8'9SY'T  086°I6FT SLO'GE'T  00TSPLT TOSCHS'l  SELTRE] 700°L01°T 60VTTT 9E9°E6H'T vr6°L96'T %9T PP6'LIG'T  BTFREL'E  %IT T00°1LT S90°THE auty
TS IL FIILY 106°¢L T19°€S 01598 8E€TTL ¥80°€9 88699 71809 VL6'1S 0 %0 0 1 %0 0 p-iar Aoy
86TLVO'T  po¥'EE8  €9E'II6  SOITW6  £TH'696  0E6'696  [98°800°1 016866 TTLO10°L LTTELOT €9TIIIL %E1 €9TIIT'T  $80°9ST'T %0 €TL'LG 098°L6 V121 21040440070
681°6L 098°1L 8LI69 81£°79 SLT09 798°sS 79895 1S5°IS 0€S°YS vi6'sy 1983 %9~ 1988k €709 %¢E- 81T'¢ 190°¢ TI001- VD
padung suoyny pang 0g4
I9L°LOST  T06'8LY'T  SPITOOL'T  LOS'€00'T  €LE'€6IT STOPEL'T  LPLFH09'T 10¥'906°C L61°880°C 06L°SLEE LSV SEE Y %9 LSV'SEEY  0TH08S'Y %8 LI0°69€ LEE'86E anuray Supyind
EVE'66T  9LO'V6T  9EI'98T  TBI'66T  68LOIE  9TL'66T  TTSLOE $55°zTE LETOFE L9T°T68 we'vey %1 WEYTr  601°9LY %91 1Z€'s¢ SY6'0F S5i0a8 Aqupvay
%95 %59 %69 %TL %SL %9L %18 %98 %¥8 %08 %78 %g- %28 %6L %I~ %¢€8 %8 40109, proT pauvjduy
1£6'891 09T°LLT  L98°S61 W69'C1T 99V 1€T  ¥6T9TT  HII'TET 891°19C 8187 TISEIE 06S°LYE %8 065°LYE L10bLE %¥1 T01°6C £IT'EE ss28usssvd pauvydoq
996'891  6SO'LLI 090961  698°'SI1T  ILSTET  BLSLIT  S6E'BET 1€9°19¢ 0€0°982 660°S1€ [44%'123 %8 TT6'8VE I¥b'8LE %¥1 19¢°67 PSS'EE siaduassod paunjdug
87788 £TT'E8 1LTE8 L9ET8 SEL°LL 90LTL L90°LL £66'CL 1€£29 858°89 (08L°S8 %b1 08L°s8 185°L6 %I 011’6 8L16 suopvadQ prog
916'C ¥SE'e L80'€ gI1'e £90°Y Lst'e LYy pSLe I1§°€ ey 9zT'9 %E 9779 TEY'9 %6T 0€S 789 Aaonppy
£10°0T SLO'S1 6T LI 980 ¥ZE0T 608'81 0¥0°0T $Ts'61 ¥60°F1 £TIYL L9881 %ET £98°81 £92°€T %8~ ¥85°C 08€T uoNDIAY (piouaL)
oo’y
ELL'T 1€8°1 ¥86°1 ¥SLT L62'T ¥E0°T 1881 £88°1 L00'T €E1T %01 692°C £0S°C %SE $91 {44 Aouppy
988°6¢ 887°6€ P6E° T P6£°3€ 196°¢E ¥Zo'1e S8L°0E 78L°8C LE6'TT 8YT'ST %ET £V¥0E £0¥ e %Y 880°¢ j414% HOUDIAY (D4ou20)
0v9°€T $L9°0T Ziv'sl S19'81 £6v°L1 8€°LT PIT0T 6¥0°0C 78L°61 [y A4 %11 SL6'LT 086°0€ %2 £VLT 69T X0 [ 42D ALY
..utcht..:
suopns2d ifps0a1y

6102 Jea) [easi4-sonsnels Bupesadp o oaw



$5013 10U-3NUSASI S|qBUOISSIOUD)),,

00TEIS'Y T99'IBTS  L98'8HO'D 96L°6TI0L [EH088°9 L6VSSTL  SEL'I9IR P8YE8LS S6b6vs'6  LTT166'6 (01°95¥°01 %t SLTILG  VIELIOT %P SLT9LE PTELIOT *PNUADY IN]) [OIUSY
E0LT0S  POII9S  9TTBE9  636°0L9 698699  SLSLOL S8LTIL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 960°080°T PPEBLYT  66L0PLT 199°000°C %91 86TEST IST°LLL %91 85T'EST IST°LLT D71 ‘spuimpn]
012y /2301202 /oo
LIE6TY'T  TTVIVE'T 695°L69°T BOFI98°T Z6ETH6T  THSTIIS IS¥vze'e 9S1°0SEE 909°L80°C  890°8TI‘V 0LS'0K0'S %L EEV'I6E  SOT'LIY %L €€V 16€E SOI'LIY puy oo,
EVBOSH'T  086'I6V'T  SLO'6ES'T  00T'SPL'T  TIE'EV8'T  SELTSG'] T00°L0T°T 60T 9E9'E6V'T  PPE'LIGT STH'8EL'E  %Tl LOT°68T  LI9'ETE %I LO1°68T L19°€TE auny
PIT°LY 106°€L 119°cs 015°98 8€T'TL +80°€9 886'99 T18°09 vL6'LS 0 1 %0 0 0 %0 0 0 y-iar Aoy
Y6Y'EE8  €9ETII6  SOITHE  €TF696  0£6°696 1988001 016866 TTLO101 LTTELOT  E9TTII'L P80°9STT %6~ 999°L6 16768 %6- 999°L6 16768 P39 21040440070
098°T2L 8L1°69 81579 SLT09 798°SS 798°9¢ ISS°IS 0£S'¥S vT6°sy 198°8p £10°9Y %01- 099 L6y %01- 099t L61Y TI001- VD
QMQ:\:.N suonvy pnd OgA
106°8LY' T SPT'00LT  LOS'€00°T  ELE'S6IT  STOPEIT  LPL'VOOT [0+°906°C LGI'880°E 06L'SLE'S  LSH'SEEY OTVOBS T %C TL'SYE  EROPSE %T TLYSYE EP0VSE INURAY SuryIvg
9L0V6T  9ET'98T  TBI'66T  68LOIE  9TT66T  TTS'LOS 439443 LETOVE L9T°T6€ [449 744 601°9LF %L LYT'9E +89°8¢ %L LYT9E ¥89'8¢ Sag qupvay
%59 %69 %IL %SL %9L %18 %98 %8 %03 %28 %6L %S %08 %¥8 %S %08 %¥8 40100, pooy paunydug
091°LLL L98°S61 TEI'EIT 9P 1€C  P6T'9TT  ITTET 891°19¢7 817487 TIsElE 065°LYE [10PLE %L 06662 SLITE %L 06667 SLITE s4a8uassud pauvidoq
6S9°LLL 090961  698°S1T 1LS°TET $L8LTT  86£'8ET 1€9°19T 0€0°98¢ 660°51€ TT6'SYE Ivr'8LE %21 ELI6T 8LS°TE %21 £LI6C 8L8°TE sea8uassvg pauvyduzg
€TT'ES 1L1°¢8 LIET8 8EL'LL 90LTL L9O'LL £66'€L 1€€°79 85889 08L'¢8 I185°L6 %I- 10¥'6 £6€°6 %I- 10¥'6 £6€°6 suoyviadg rog
pse'e L80°€ SIT°E £90'F LSY'E LYT'y ¥SLE 118°¢ 1Ty 927’9 TEr'o %8S 8Ty 8L9 %8¢ 8Ty 8L9 Aoy
SLO'ST ¥6T'LI 98¥°07 $TE0T 608°81 ov0°0C STS'61 P60°¥1 raldl L98°81 £97°¢C %C- 858°C 018°C %C- 858°C 018°C HoHDIAY [D42UDL)
jpoo7
€81 ¥86°1 PELL L6T'T $£0°T 188°1 £88°L L00°T €€1°C 697°C £0$°T %9% 681 SLT %9% 681 SLT oy
887°6¢ PoETY P6£°8E 195°€€ YZO'1E $8L0E 78L°8T LE6'CT 8¥TsT [3440% £0¥'pE %9- T0Ee $01°€ %9- Tog's YO1E UODINY [DA2UIL)
$L9°0T (48231 $19°81 €6¥'L1 8€°L1 ricoz 6v0°07 78L°61 (324 SL6'LT 0860 %S~ ¥z9°T 984T %S~ 79T 98¥°T X 2104D)) Y
upLUny

suonns2dQ) Yvso.01y

610Z JesA |essid-sonspe)s BunesadQ Cw o a ey



§5018 10U-0NUVADL S]qBUOISSIIUOY),,

00T°CI9'Y  T99'18T'C  LOB'BHO'9  96L'610°L TEH0R8'0  L6V'SST'L SELTIIT'G 8YEBLS S6v'6¥S°6  LIT1666 001°95F01 %8 0LV'086°T  98S°6T1T %Il 961°700°T 9T TITo #INUINDY IN]) [D1USY
€0LTOS  ¥OI'I9S  9TTBEY  686°0L9 698699  SLEL9L S8LTIL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 960°080°T PPSBLY' T 66L0FLT 199000 %€l TLO'ETE  665°99€ %I 1 pILOLL 8¥1681 OT1 sputmpin]
NDIY/P8VI202G/POO]
TIE6TV'T  TTVS'T  69E°L69°T 8OV'I98T  T6E°1#6'T THSITIE ISYPTTE 961°0SE"E 909°L80°€  890°STI‘¥Y 0LS0F0'S %6 8LT'96L  187°0L8 %1 SPRPOY 9L1'ESY 121 [vrof
EVBOSY'L  086°T6P' T  SLO'GE9T  00T'SKLT TOCEHS'T SELTSG] T00°L01°C 60'72TT 9E9'E6H' T YP6'LI6T STV'BEL'E  %ST LLV'98S  spb'eL9 %81 0LE'L6T 8T86HE ULty
PLILY 106°¢L 119es 015°98 8ETTL ¥80°€9 886'99 T18°09 bL6TS 0 5l %0 0 0 %0 0 0 y-190 Aoy
VEY'SE8  £9E'T16  SOI'THE  £TV'696 086696 1988001 016'866 TTLOI0T LTTELOT  €9TILET ¥80°95Z°T %t~ 8€€°00T  681°L81 %S- 7L9°T01 868°L6 V-13f 210404400/ D)
098°1L 8L1°69 8179 SLT09 798°S 7989 185°IS 0SS ¥Z6'Sy 198°8Y EF0°9Y %I £9%'6 Lb9'6 %EL £08°'F 0S¥'s TI00I- VD
padung suopw) [ong Og.q
106°8LY' T SPI'00L'T  LOS€00'T ELE'C61'T SBTOVEL'T  LPLPO9T 10+°906'C L61°880°C 06L°SLE'S  LSY'SEEY 0ZY'08St  %E LT6BIL  600°THL %l SS0°ELE 996°L8¢ FNUBNDY Supvg
9L0'P6T  9EI'98T  TBI'66T  G8L'OIE  9TT66T  TTS'LOE $6S°TTE LETOPE L9T'T6E [4 %744 60T9LY %8 S91°SL 900°18 %6 816°8€ e S12§ A qupivay
%S9 %69 %L %SL %9L %18 %98 %¥8 %08 %78 %6L %1 %18 %18 %¢E- %18 %3L 4000, poo pauppduy
091°LL1 L98°S61 T69ETT  99V'IST  v6T9TT  HII'CET 891°19Z S1T¥8T CISEIE 06S°LYE 110°vLE %L 11229 819°99 %L 17T°Te 3%y saa3uassnd paunjdaq
659°LLT 090961  698°S1T  1LS'TET  PL8LTT  86EET 1£9°192 0£0°98Z 660°S1€ TT6'8PE Ivh'8LE %6 LVS 09 IPL'S9 %9 YLETE £91°€E s128uassvg pauvydug
€TT°€8 IL1'E8 L9€°T8 8ELLL 90L'TL L90°LL €66°EL 1£€°79 858°39 08L'¢8 185°L6 %~ 898°81 $90°81 %8- LIY'6 TIL'8 suoywiadp fvrog
233 L80°E 311°¢ €90y LS¥'e LT PSL'E 118 "e'y 9TT9 [4S 4] %LV (413 we'l %LE 214 ¥99 Ay
SLO'8L Y6T'LI 980T $TE0T 608°81 01007 szs'6l 60°FI £T1%1 L98°81 £9T'€T %11- S8L'S 6TI°S %1T- LT6T 61€°T HODIAY [042UBD)
‘ppooy
1£8°1 ¥86°L PSL1 L6T°T PE0'T 188°1 €88°1 L00°T £ET°T 697'C £08°C %LT 60F 0zs %11 0ze (344 Awippy
887°6¢ Y6E Y P6£°8€ 195°ce ¥T0°1E $8L°0E 78L'8T LEGTT 8¥T'ST (321 0¥ vE %8~ 1799 7T19 %01- 6£€°E 810¢ UOUDIAY |DL2UBD)
$L9°0T el ST19°81 £61°LT I8€'L1 ¥12°02 6v0°0C 78L'61 EVI'ET SL6'LT 086°0€ %E- 2rs 86'Y %1~ L6¥'T 99°T X0 ] 421440 A1
JpLuly
suonnsado osony

610Z 1esA |eosid-sonsnels Bunesado e o e w



5013 10U-0NUSASS SJEUISSINUO]),

00T°€19  T9O'IST'S  LOS'BYO'0  O6L'GIOL TEHO0S8'9  LGHSSTL  SELION'S YSY'E8L'S S6V6bS‘6  LTT166°6 001°95F"01  %LS 0LV086'T  TIETIT'E  %0C 00Z°'128 STLI86 ¥INUINIY ID)) [Py
E0LT0S  YOT'I9S  OTT'8EY  686°0L9 698699  SLLOL $8LTIL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 960°080°T PRR'SLYT  66L°0PL° 199°000'C  %bz 090°0bF  £0S°OFS %IT 9ZS"LY1 YO6°6L1 ‘D77 ‘spuimping
DI /28042435 /P00,y
TIE'6TH'T  TTh'9ps'T  69€°L69°T 8OVISRT  T6ST6C THSIIN'E 15¥'vTT'E 961°05€°E 909°L80°C  890°STI'¥ 0LS'0PO'S  %IE 0ZE'V66  199°66T'T  %EI LO06LE 08€'62k 1ond oL
EPB9SH'T  086'I6HT  SLO'6E9'T  00T'SHL'T TOE'EV8T SELTR6T  Z00°LOTZ T60'vTTC 9E9'E6V'T  VP6'L96'T 8TH'YEL'E  %bE SOV'EEL  1LL'186 %11 8L89LT 9ZE‘80€ aulLy
PIELO 106°€L T19°cs 01598 8ETTL +80°€9 88699 71809 vL6'TS 0 ST %0 0 0 %0 0 0 y-iar Aoy
POV'EE8  E9E'TI6  SOTTWE  STK696  0E6'696 1988001  O16'866 TTLOIO0'] LTTELOT  €9TTIIL ¥80°9ST°T  %ST VIU'EYT  LEE°EOE %L1 $0Z'66 8r1°911 y-iof amiodioyn
098°IL 8L1°69 81579 SLT09 798'cS 7989 15815 0£S'HS ¥T6'sy 198°8k £40'01 %9 I€L°€1 €551 %89 ST6'T 906'v 71001- ¥D
padung suopen 1ong Ogq
106°8L5°L  SPI'00L'T  L0S'€00°T E€LE'C6IT  BLOPEI'T LLL'WO9T  10VO06'C L61°880°E 06L'SLE'E  LSK'SEC'Y 0TH 085y %91 9€6°€66  LGI'SPIT %€l 100°85€ 881°00¥ INUIAIY Buryavg
9LOY6T  9EI'98T  TBI'G6L  68LOIE  9TT667  TISLOE $S5'TTE LETOVE LITT6E  THSPTh 601°0LY %91 PES'SOL  689°CTI %6 ¥ST'8E £89'1 S10ag qUIDAY
%S9 %69 %TL %SL %9L %I8 %98 %¥8 %08 %28 Y%6L %%t~ %28 %08 %S Y%L %8L 40120, pvo] pauppdug
09T'LLT  L98'S61  T69'CIT  9M'IET  $6T'9TC  bOI'ZEL 891°197 8ITH8T TIS'EIE  06S'LYeE 110LE %bl 95998 $€9'86 %S T P68°LT L10°ZE s1a8uassog pauvidaq
6S9°LLT 090961  698'STC  1LS°TEC  PLYLTZ  S6ERET 1€9°19Z 0£0'982 660°SIE  TT6'SPE Ib'8LE %€l L18°98 61286 %S1 0LT'8T 8LY'TE s1a5uassng pauvyduzy
0
£27°¢8 IL1°E8 L9E'T8 SELLL 90L°TL L9OLL £66°€L T€£°29 86889 08L's8 185°L6 %S¢ 008°61 90897 %trE 608°9 L8 Suonv.adg) jozo
0
psee L80°€ 8TI°E £90°y LSY'E L¥T'Y yoL'E T1s'e  tA 9779 TEr'o %92 $Or'l 8v8'1 %Yz 96T 905 Lo
SLO'RT $6T°LT 98%'07 yzeoT 608°81 0r0°0T STS'61 $60F1 Y ANT| £9%°81 t9T'el %0L Yob'y £79°L %601 961°1 Y6r'T uoDIAY 042U
0 ‘paoy
€81 ¥861 YSLT L6TT PE0°T 188°1 £38'1 L00'T £E1°T 697'T £05°T %bb LES SLL %901 174! $ST Auouppy
887°6¢ Y6ETY P6ERE 195'¢€ ¥T0°1€ $8L°0E T8L8T LE6°TT 8T'ST £PY'0E E0F'VE %¥C 16272 SH0'6 %61 £SH'T €767 uonviay [oiauss
SL9'0T TIF'61 SI9°81 £6¥°LT T8E°LT ¥12'02 6v0°07 28L°61 EP1°ET SL6'LT 086°0¢ %ST ¥109 SIS'L %I~ 08T £95°C DO LBLATD 4y
upiduyy
suoywiadp ooy

610Z Jea A |easi4-sonsne)s Bunesado T

O



CHO

A I R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: November 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Ac(tiion Item #1: Amendment #2 of the Airport’s F'Y20 Capital
Budget

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval of Amendment#2 to the Airport’s FY20 Capital
Budget as proposed.

BACKGROUND: This item has been proposed to amend the previously approved FY20
Capital Budget. The airport’s existing fork lift was acquired several years ago through a state
surplus equipment program. Recently, this fork lift has been experiencing serious
mechanical issues. In order to fund the purchase of a replacement fork lift, an amendment to
the FY20 Capital Budget is proposed.

This amendment will add “Project AN — Purchase Fork Lift” at the estimated cost of $20,000
with the Authority funding 100% of the purchase.

This amendment will also move “Project M — Terminal Fire Suppression Upgrade” to a
future year to be incorporated with a terminal expansion project. This project had been
budgeted at an estimated cost of $100,000 with $80,000 being funded from the Virginia
Department of Aviation (VDOA) and the remaining 20% or $20,000 being funded by the
Authority.

PIOR ACTION: Capital Budget Amendment #1 approved on August 5, 2019.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  This amendment will reduce the VDOA funding by $80,000
due to the Terminal Fire Suppression Upgrade project being
moved to a future year when it will be incorporated into a
terminal expansion project. The Authority’s funding level will
remain unchanged.

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1-Revised FY20 Capital Budget.

PRESENTATION: None



November 2019
1. Executive Director’s Update for the following items will be provided:
a. Personnel Update
b. Construction Update
i.  Air Carrier Apron Expansion Project
ii. Expansion of Economy Surface Parking Lot Project
iii. Hangar Parking Lot and Other Parking Improvement Projects
iv. ARFF Breakroom and Training Room Project — Environmental issue
v. MALSR Update
¢. CHO’s Airport Concessions Disadvantage Business Enterprise (ACDBE) Program
d. Attachment #1 to the Authority’s Purchasing Regulation
e. Smith Vicars Agreement Letter

f. Marketing & Air Service Update

g. Acknowledgment of Staff’s Outstanding Management of Recent VIP Visit



Charlottesville Albemarle
Airport

Airport Concessions Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise (ACDBE) program

“
September 2019
e e e ___—————— ———— ——————_ =



Table of Contents

POLICY STATEMENT ...ttt eae et s st st s et saeeseeessaea et s s e saesssse st snasaranae s s s e seesssesessssenseeeeses 3
SUBPART A — GENERAL REQUIREMENTS........ccoirrereernireienseretstssessesssssseteseesseeeesssessssssssssesssesssssensessessessessessesssnns 4
Section 23.1 OBJECLIVES ...ttt ettt s st a s se e s me e se et e ee e tas e e nens 4
Section 23.3 DEFINITIONS....cueeieiiiec sttt et es ettt s st en et st aensseeeaseeenerenes 4
Section 23.5 APPHCADIIITY ...ttt r ettt s e e s ete s e eens e enesssne e asenes 4
Section 23.9 Non-discrimination REQUITEMENTS .......ceeeeeveverereereiiiceceseeeeescsesesessseeeeseessssssesssssssns 4
Section 23.11 Compliance and ENfOrCEMENt .......cc.iceeueeevieeeeiceccisteeereter et e seeesseee s s e seeneessenen 5
SUBPART B — ACDBE PTOBIAMS......c.coeueeriretriasseiseseneesssessssessstassssesesssesesseessasasssnsssesesasssssssssssesssesssssssssssssesesssssesses 6
Section 23.21 ACDBE Program UPAates......ccccoeeveeireeriieesieceeiereviresiesestesesseesesseeoeseeoesneessesesessssssenees 6
Section 23.23 AdMINISEIAative PrOVISIONS ......c..ovuvvicreiriienisinintesreeeeeeeeseeeeeeseessesesnseessessoseesssssenssssessas 6
Section 23.25 Ensuring Nondiscriminatory Participation of ACDBES..........ccovveeveeeeeeeeeeeesereesessesnans 7
Section 23.27 REPOITING .ottt ettt ss e s emeeeenne e neses st seasesnmenssnen 8
Section 23.29 Compliance and ENfOrcement ProCEAUIES.............c.cuceveieirseeeeereeeeeeeseeeseeesesassssseseas 8
SUBPART C ~ CERTIFICATION AND ELIGIBILITY ...vcvveteteteeiceeecteececreeeeceesssessesssseesssssessssssssasenesssessssesssesssssssesssssssen 8
Section 23.31 Unified Certification PrOBIam ... ...cceccceeieeeiiceccereeeessesesseesessessesssassesasesaseesssssesssenes 9
SUBPART D — GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING .........ouevieeieeerereneeeeseresseeseessesesereensssssssessseresssssesens 10
Section 23.41 Basic Overall Goal REQUIrEMENT ........ccuecuieeeeieeteeecicceetcec et cstseeeeseeeeseeeeessveesesseneas 10
Section 23.43 Consultation in GOAl SELLING ........cecererieereesetieei ittt eee e sne e ste e ans 11
Section 23.45 OVEIAll GOBIS.....ouieieieiieccee ettt et saes st cn st ens e eaens 11
Projection of Estimated Race-Neutral & Race-Conscious Participation (23.45(f), 23.25(d-€)) ..cevveeeeeevrrenenne.. 12
Good Faith Efforts on Concession-specific Goals (23.25(€)(1)(iii), (IV)) svverrrrermrecereeererresressrssessesssssesssssemsesnns 12
Demonstration of good faith efforts (26.53(2) & (C)) v.eviveeiereremieeeiiieeeceieeerseeseseesereeesseeseesesessrese e enesseeesenenses 13
Information to be SUBMITEEA (26.53(D)) .vvrrereeriricnieieceitcceereeeeereeesesseseessseessesessesesesesesasesssssessssesesessessesssssns 13
Administrative reconSIderation (26.53(0)) ......cevueeerrereritiriririeesisieceeeeeeeeeeereseesesssesssssesssssessssssssesessssssssseossessoes 13
Good Faith Efforts when an ACDBE is replaced on a concession (26.53(f)) ....ccvveeeereeeeeeeevserereesereessssennenns 1615
Seqction 23.55 Counting ACDBE Participation for Concessions Other than Car Rentals................ 1817
SUBPART E — OTHER PROVISIONS ........coriirirtiririeeireneesesessssesessstesesscsessesssesesssessstessssssssssenssasesssensssssssserssssosses 1817
Sdction 23.71 EXIStING ABFEEMENTS .....oovvieeniecrre ettt ettt et eeee s ese s e s s sesseseneesseseanen 1817
Sgction 23.73 Privately-Owned or Leased Terminal BUildings..........ccoeveveereeoieeeeeeeeeeevesesseennns 1817
Sqction 23.75 Long-Term EXClUSIVE AGrEEMENTS. .....c..ccceeuirriteneiectiitesreieteeeesiseceneseeseeesrenessesaeseas 1837
Sdction 23.79 GEOBraphic Pref@re@NCeS .......vveeivieeiieeie ettt e ees e e sev e eeneneas 1948



US Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program
49 CFR Parts 23
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

POLICY STATEMENT

The Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority (“the Authority”), on behalf of the Charlottesville Albemarle
Airport (“the Airport”), has established an Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (ACDBE) program
in accordance with regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR Part 23. The Airportisa
primary non-hub airport and has received federal funds authorized for airport development after January 1988
{authorized under Title 49 of the United States Code). The Authority has signed airport grant assurances that it will
comply with 49 CFR Part 23.

It is the policy of the Authority to ensure that ACDBEs as defined in Part 23, have an equal opportunity to receive
and participate in concession opportunities. It is also the policy:

1. To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of opportunities for concessions by airports receiving

DOT financial assistance;

2. Tocreate a level playing field on which ACDBESs can compete fairly for opportunities for concessions;

3. To ensure that the ACDBE program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law;

4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet this part’s eligibility standards are permitted to participate as ACDBESs at the
airport;

5. To help remove barriers to the participation of ACDBEs in opportunities for concessions at the airport; and

6. To provide appropriate flexibility to the airport in establishing and providing opportunities for ACDBES.

Penny Shifflett, Director of Finance, Charlottesville Albemarle Airport, 100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200,
Charlottesville VA 22911, 434-973-8342 has been designated as the ACDBE Liaison Officer (ACDBELO). In that
capacity, the ACDBELO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the ACDBE program. Implementation of the
ACDBE program is accorded the same priority as compliance with all other legal obligations incurred by the
Authority in its financial assistance agreements with the US Department of Transportation.

The Authority has disseminated this policy statement to the Authority staff and the Authority board members. The
Authority will also distribute this statement to ACDBE and non-ACDBE concessionaire communities in our area via

the following means:

1. This policy statement will be prepared as a handout, and made available at concession pre-proposal
conferences, and/or outreach meetings conducted by the Authority.

2. Copies of the policy statement will be mailed to all of the agencies/organizations consulted during the
development of the ACDBE goal methodology.

Executive Director Date



SUBPART A — GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Section 23.1 Objectives
The objectives are found in the policy statement on the first page of this program.
Section 23.3 Definitions

The Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority (hereafter “the Authority”) will use terms in this
program that have the meaning defined in Part 23 Section 23.3 and Part 26 Section 26.5 where

applicable.
Section 23.5 Applicability

The Charlottesville Albemarle Airport is a non-hub primary airport and the sponsor of federal airport
funds authorized for airport development after January 1988 that was authorized under Title 49 of the

United States Code.
A link to the ACDBE regulations (49 CFR Part 23) can be found in Attachment 8 to this program.
Section 23.9 Non-discrimination Requirements

The Authority will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, or
otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and performance of any concession
agreement, management contract or subcontract, purchase or lease agreement or other agreement
covered by 49 CFR Part 23 on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin.

In administering its DBE program, the Authority will not, directly or through contractual or other
arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of defeating or
substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the ACDBE program with respect to
individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin.

The Authority acknowledges these representations are also in accordance with obligations contained in
its Civil Rights, DBE and ACDBE Airport grant assurances.

The Authority will include the following assurances in all concession agreements and management
contracts it executes with any firm:

(1) This agreement is subject to the requirements of the U.S. Department of Transportation's
regulations, 49 CFR Part 23. The concessionaire or contractor agrees that it will not discriminate
against any business owner because of the owner's race, color, national origin, or sex in
connection with the award or performance of any concession agreement, management
contract, or subcontract, purchase or lease agreement, or other agreement covered by 49 CFR
Part 23.

(2) The concessionaire or contractor agrees to include the above statements in any subsequent
concession agreement or contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23, that it enters and cause those
businesses to similarly include the statements in further agreements.

4



Section 23.11 Compliance and Enforcement

The Authority will comply with and is subject to the provisions of 49 CFR Part 26 (§§ 26.101 and 26.105
through 26.107).

The Authority will comply with this part or be subject to formal enforcement action under §26.105 or
appropriate program sanctions, such as the suspension or termination of Federal funds, or refusal to
approve projects, grants or contracts until deficiencies are remedied. Program sanctions may include
actions consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 47106(d), 47111(d), and 47122.

2 C.F.R. Part 180, Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement), effective
November 15, 2006, adopted and supplemented by DOT at 2 C.F.R. Part 1200, effective June 2, 2008,
provides Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidance for Federal agencies on the government-
wide debarment and suspension system for non-procurement transactions, programs and activities. 2
C.F.R. Part 1200 adopts the OMB guidance in subparts A through I of 2 CFR part 180, as supplemented
by part 1200, as the Department of Transportation policies and procedures for non-procurement
suspension and debarment.

The Authority’s compliance with all requirements of this part is enforced through the procedures of Title
49 of the United States Code, including 49 U.S.C. 47106(d), 47111(d), and 47122, and regulations

implementing them.

Compliance reviews: The FAA may review the Authority’s compliance with this part at any time,
including but not limited to, reviews of paperwork, on-site reviews, and review of the Authority’s
monitoring and enforcement mechanism, as appropriate. The FAA Office of Civil Rights may initiate a
compliance review based on complaints received.

Any person who knows of a violation of this part by the Authority may file a complaint under 14 CFR Part
16 with the Federal Aviation Administration Office of Chief Counsel.

The following enforcement actions apply to firms participating in the Authority’s ACDBE program:

(a) For a firm that does not meet the eligibility criteria of subpart C of this part and that attempts to
participate as an ACDBE on the basis of false, fraudulent, or deceitful statements or
representations or under circumstances indicating a serious lack of business integrity or
honesty, the Department of Transportation (DOT) or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
may initiate suspension or debarment proceedings against the firm under 49 CFR Part 29.

(b) For a firm that, in order to meet ACDBE goals or other DBE program requirements, uses or
attempts to use, on the basis of false, fraudulent or deceitful statements or representations or
under circumstances indicating a serious lack of business integrity or honesty, another firm that
does not meet the eligibility criteria of subpart C of this part, DOT or FAA may initiate
suspension or debarment proceedings against the firm under 49 CFR Part 29.

(c) Inasuspension or debarment proceeding brought under paragraph (a) or (b) of this section, the
FAA may consider the fact that a purported ACDBE has been certified. However, such
certification does not preclude DOT from determining that the purported ACDBE, or another

5



firm that has used or attempted to use it to meet ACDBE goals, should be suspended or
debarred.

(d) DOT may take enforcement action under 49 CFR Part 31, Program Fraud and Civil Remedies,
against any participant in the ACDBE program whose conduct is subject to such action under 49
CFR Part 31.

(e) DOT may refer to the Department of Justice, for prosecution under 18 U.S.C.§§ 1001 or other
applicable provisions of law, any person who makes a false or fraudulent statement in
connection with participation of an ACDBE in the Authority’s ACDBE program or otherwise
violates applicable Federal statutes.

SUBPART B — ACDBE Programs

Section 23.21 ACDBE Program Updates

Since the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport is a non-hub primary airport, the Airport is required to have
an ACDBE program. As a condition of eligibility for FAA financial assistance, the Authority will submit its
ACDBE program and overall goals to FAA in accordance with 23.45(a) of this section.

When the Authority makes significant changes to its ACDBE program, the Airport will provide the
amended program to the FAA for approval prior to implementing the changes.

Section 23.23 Administrative Provisions

Policy Statement: The Authority is committed to operating its ACDBE program in a nondiscriminatory
manner. The Authority’s Policy Statement is described on the first page of this program.

ACDBE Liaison Officer (ACDBELO): The Authority has designated the following individual as the
ACDBELO:

Penny Shifflett
Director of Finance
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200
Charlottesville VA 22911
434-973-8342
pshifflett@gocho.com

In that capacity, the ACDBELO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the ACDBE program and
ensuring that the Authority complies with all provision of 49 CFR Part 23. The ACDBELO has direct,
independent access to the Executive Director of the Airport concerning ACDBE program matters. An
organizational chart displaying the ACDBELQ’s position in the organization is found in Attachment 1 to

this program.

The ACDBELO is responsible for developing, implementing and monitoring the ACDBE program, in
coordination with other appropriate officials. The ACDBELO is assisted as may be required by



appropriate members of the Airport staff as well as the Authority’s legal counsel to assist in the
administration of the program. The duties and responsibilities include the following:

Gathers and reports statistical data and other information as required by FAA or DOT.

Reviews third party contracts and purchase requisitions for compliance with this program.

Works with all departments to set overall triennial goals.

Ensures that bid notices and requests for proposals are available to ACDBEs in a timely manner.

Identifies contracts and procurements so that ACDBE goals are included in solicitations (both race-neutral

methods and concession-specific goals, when applicable).

Analyzes the Authority’s progress toward attainment and identifies ways to improve progress.

Attends pre-bid/pre-proposal meetings.

Advises the Authority on ACDBE matters and achievement.

Chairs the ACDBE Advisory Committee (if/fwhen formed).

10. Provides ACDBEs with information and assistance in preparing bids, obtaining bonding, financing, and
insurance; acts as a liaison to the OSDBU-Minority Resource Center (MRC).

11. Plans and participates in ACDBE training seminars.

12. Acts as liaison to the Unified Certification Program in Virginia.

13. Provides outreach to ACDBEs and community organizations to advise them of opportunities.

VA WNRK

0 XN

Directory: The Authority uses the Virginia Unified Certification Program (VA UCP) DBE directory,
maintained by the Virginia Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity (DSBSD). The directory
lists the firm’s name, address, phone number, date of the most recent certification, and the type of
work the firm has been certified to perform as a DBE. In addition, the directory lists each type of work
for which a firm is eligible to be certified by using the most specific NAICS code available to describe
each type of work. The directory can be found in Attachment 2 to this program.

Section 23.25 Ensuring Nondiscriminatory Participation of ACDBEs

The Authority will take the following measures to ensure nondiscriminatory participation of ACDBEs in
concession, and other covered activities (23.25(a):

e The Authority will follow all federal, state and local nondiscrimination laws, as well as comply with
all of the Authority’s policies and procedures designed to ensure nondiscrimination. These laws,
policies and procedures include but are not limited to: Title VI and the regulations found at 49 CFR

Parts 23 and 26.

e The Authority will seek ACDBE participation in all types of concession activities, rather than
concentrating participation in one category or a few categories to the exclusion of others. (23.25(c))

e The Authority’s overall goal methodology, and a description of the race-neutral measures it will take
to meet the goals, are described in Section 23.25 and Attachment 4 and 5 of this plan. The goals are
set consistent with the requirements of Subpart D (23.25(b), (d)).

e If the Authority projects that race-neutral measures, standing alone, are not sufficient to meet an
overall goal, it will use race-conscious measures as described in Section 23.25 (e) (1-2) and
Attachment 4 and 5 of this plan. (23.25(e)



e The Authority will require businesses subject to ACDBE goals at the airport (except car rental
companies) to make good faith efforts to explore all available options to meet goals, to the
maximum extent practicable, through direct ownership arrangements with ACDBEs.

® The Authority will not use set-asides or quotas as a means of obtaining ACDBE participation. (23.25

(fi(g))
Section 23.27 Reporting

The Authority will submit annually the USDOT-FAA Uniform Report of ACDBE Participation, as modified
for use by FAA recipients, via the FAA dbE-Connect system (https://faa.civilrightsconnect.com ). These
reports will reflect concession revenue actually received by all concessionaires.

The Airport will retain sufficient basic information about its ACDBE program implementation, ACDBE
certification and the award and performance of agreements and contracts to enable the FAA to
determine its compliance with Part 23. This data will be retained for a minimum of 3 years following the
end of the concession agreement or other covered contract.

Section 23.29 Compliance and Enforcement Procedures

The Authority will take the following monitoring and enforcement mechanisms to ensure compliance
with 49 CFR Part 23:

The Authority will require prime concessions to report ACDBE participation quarterly. The Authority,
through its ACDBELO or designee, will monitoring each contract /work on-site at the Airport for
participation and to verify that work committed to ACDBEs is actually performed by ACDBEs named in
bids. This will be in accordance with the requirements of section 23.29.

When the Authority enters into a new concession agreement or if material amendments are made to an
existing agreement, the ACDBELO will review records of all contracts, leases, joint venture agreements,
or other concession-related agreements, for consistency with the monitoring requirements cited above.

The Authority uses a number of ACDBE forms, which can be found in Attachment 9, to collect ACDBE
information for initial concession setup and for ongoing monitoring of ACDBE participation:

ACDBE Compliance Review Checklist

Listing of ACDBE Subconcessionaires

ACDBE Quarterly Report

ACDBE Commercially Useful Function Report

The ACDBELO will document, on the ACDBE Compliance Review Checklist, written certification of
monitoring and contract review and will make available to the FAA upon request.

1. The Authority will bring to the attention of the US Department of Transportation any false,
fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so that DOT can take the steps
(e.g., referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the DOT Inspector
General, action under suspension and debarment or Program Fraud and Civil Penalties rules)
provided in 26.107.



2. The Authority will consider similar action under its own legal authorities, including responsibility
determinations in future contracts. The Authority has listed the regulations, provisions, and
contract remedies available to us in the events of non-compliance with the ACDBE regulation by a
participant in its procurement activities (see Attachment 3).

SUBPART C ~ CERTIFICATION AND ELIGIBILITY

Section 23.31 Unified Certification Program

The Virginia UCP will use the procedures and standards of Part 26, except as provided in 23.31, for
certification of ACDBEs to participate in the concessions program and such standards are incorporated

herein.

The Authority is a member of the Virginia Unified Certification Program (Virginia UCP), administered by
Virginia Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity and the Metropolitan Washington Airports
Authority (MWAA) which will make certification decisions on behalf of the Authority.

The Virginia UCP’s directory of eligible DBEs will specify whether a firm is certified as a DBE for purposes
of Part 26, and ACDBE for purposes of part 23, or both.

The Virginia UCP will treat a firm as a small business eligible to be certified as an ACDBE if its gross
receipts, averaged over the firm’s previous three fiscal years do not exceed $56.42 million for non-car
rental ACDBEs and $75.23 million for car rental ACDBEs. The size standard for banks and other financial
institutions is $1 billion in assets; for pay telephone companies, 1,500 employees; and for ACDBE
automobile dealers, 350 employees.

Section 23.35: The personal net worth standard used in determining eligibility for purposes of Part 23 is
$1.32 million.

The Virginia UCP recognizes that, in calculating personal net worth, the following exclusions apply: The
individual's ownership interest in an ACDBE firm or a firm that is applying for ACDBE certification; and
the individual's equity in his or her primary place of residence. [Note: A previously included provision
allowing for the exclusion of other assets that the individual can document are necessary to obtain
financing or a franchise agreement for the initiation or expansion of his or her ACDBE firm (or have in
fact been encumbered to support existing financing for the individual's ACDBE business), to @ maximum
of $3 million has been suspended pending further notification.]. An individual's personal net worth
includes only his or her own share of assets held jointly or as community property with the individual's
spouse.

Any person who has a personal net worth exceeding this amount is not a socially and economically
disadvantaged individual, even if a member of a group otherwise presumed to be disadvantaged (See
23.3 - Personal Net Worth definition and 23.35).

The Virginia UCP will presume that a firm that is certified as a DBE under part 26 is eligible to participate
as an ACDBE. However, before certifying such a firm, the Virginia UCP will ensure that the
disadvantaged owners of a DBE certified under part 26 are able to control the firm with respect to its



activity in concessions programs. The Virginia UCP is not obligated to certify a part 26 DBE as an ACDBE
if the firm does not do work relevant to the airport’s concessions program (23.37).

The Virginia UCP recognizes that the provisions of part 26, sections 26.83(c) (2-6) do not apply to
certifications for purposes of part 23. The Virginia UCP will obtain resumes or work histories of the
principal owners of the firm and personally interview these individuals. The Virginia UCP will analyze the
ownership of stock of the firm, if it is a corporation. The Virginia UCP will analyze the bonding and
financial capacity of the firm. The Virginia UCP will determine the work history of the firm, including any
concession contracts or other contracts it may have received. The Virginia UCP will compile a list of the
licenses of the firm and its key personnel to perform the concession contracts or other contracts it
wishes to receive. The Virginia UCP will obtain a statement from the firm of the types of concessions it
prefers to operate or the type of other contracts it prefers to perform. The Virginia UCP will ensure that
the ACDBE firm meets the applicable size standard (23.39(a)(b)).

The Virginia UCP acknowledges that a prime contractor includes a firm holding a prime contract with an
airport concessionaire to provide goods or services to the concessionaire or a firm holding a prime
concession agreement with a recipient. The Virginia UCP recognizes that the eligibility of Alaska Native
Corporations (ANC) owned firms for purposes of part 23 is governed by part 26 section 26.73(h).
(23.39(c)(d)).

The Virginia UCP will use the certification standards of part 23 to determine the ACDBE eligibility of firms
that provide goods and services to concessionaires (23.39(i)).

In instances when the eligibility of a concessionaire is removed after the concessionaire has entered into
a concession agreement because the firm exceeded the size standard or the owner has exceeded the
PNW standard, and the firm in all other respects remains an eligible DBE, the Authority may continue to
count the concessionaire’s participation toward ACDBE goals during the remainder of the current
concession agreement. The Authority will not count the concessionaire’s participation toward ACDBE
goals beyond the termination date for the concession agreement in effect at the time of the
decertification (23.39(e)).

The UCP will use the Uniform Application Form found in Appendix F to part 26 with additional
instruction as stated in 23.39(g). A link to the Virginia UCP certification application forms can be found

in Attachment 7 to this program.

SUBPART D — GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING

Section 23.41 Basic Overall Goal Requirement

The Authority will establish two separate overall ACDBE goals; one for car rentals and another for
concessions other than car rentals. The overall goals will cover a three-year period and the Authority
will review the goals annually to make sure the goal continues to fit its circumstances. The Authority will
report any significant overall goal adjustments to the FAA.

If the average annual concession revenues for car rentals over the preceding 3 years do not exceed
$200,000, the Authority will not need to submit an overall goal for car rentals. Likewise, if the average
annual concession revenues for concessions other than car rentals over the preceding 3 years do not

10



exceed $200,000, the Authority will not need to submit an overall goal for concessions other than car
rentals. The Authority understands that “revenue” means total revenue generated by concessions, not
the fees received by the airport from concessionaires.

The Authority’s overall goals will provide for participation by all certified ACDBEs and will not be
subdivided into group-specific goals.

Section 23.43 Consultation in Goal Setting

The Authority consults with stakeholders before submitting the overall goals to the FAA. Stakeholders
will include, but not be limited to, minority and women’s business groups, community organizations,
trade associations representing concessionaires currently located at the airport, as well as existing
concessionaires themselves, and other officials or organizations which could be expected to have
information concerning the availability of disadvantaged businesses, the effects of discrimination on
opportunities for ACDBEs, and the Authority’s efforts to increase participation of ACDBEs.

When submitting the overall goals, the Authority will identify the stakeholders that were consulted with
and provide a summary of the information obtained from the stakeholders.

Section 23.45 Overall Goals

The Charlottesville Albemarle Airport is a non-hub primary airport. As a condition of eligibility for FAA
financial assistance, the Authority will submit its overall according to the following schedule:

Primary Airport Size Region Date Due Period Next Goal Due
Covered
ber 1, 2020
N . October 1,
Large/Medium Hubs All regions October 1, 2017 2018/2019/2020 (2021/2022/2023)
: October 1, 2018
Small Hubs All regions October 1, 2018 2019/2020/2021 (2022/2023/2024)
ber 1, 2019
. October 1,
Non-Hubs All regions October 1, 2016 I 2017/2018/2019 I (2020/2021/2022)

If a new concession opportunity arises at a time that falls between the normal submission dates above
and the estimated average of annual gross revenues are anticipated to be $200,000 or greater, the
Authority will submit an appropriate adjustment to the overall goal to FAA for approval at least 90 days
before executing the new concession agreement.

The Authority will establish overall goals in accordance with the 2-step process as specified in section
23.51. After determining the total gross receipts for the concession activity, the first step is to
determine the relative availability of ACDBEs in the market area, or the “base figure.”

The second step is to examine all relevant evidence reasonably available in the Authority’s jurisdiction to
determine if an adjustment to the Step 1 “base figure” is necessary so that the goal reflects as accurately
as possible the ACDBE participation the Authority would expect in the absence of discrimination.
Evidence may include, but is not limited to past participation by ACDBEs, a disparity study, evidence
from related fields that affect ACDBE opportunities to form, grow, and compete (such as statistical

11



disparities in ability to get required financing, bonding, insurance; or data on employment, self-
employment, education, training and union apprenticeship)

A description of the methodology to calculate the overall goal for car rentals, the goal calculations, and
the data the Authority relied on can be found in Attachment 4 to this program.

A description of the methodology to calculate the overall goal for concessions other than car rentals, the
goal calculations, and the data the Authority relied on can be found in Attachment 5 to this program.

Projection of Estimated Race-Neutral & Race-Conscious Participation (23.45(f), 23.25(d-¢))

The breakout of estimated race-neutral and race-conscious participation can be found with the goal
methodologies in Attachments 4 and 5 to this program. This section of the program will be reviewed
annually when the goal calculation is reviewed under 23.41(c).

Concession-specific Goals (23.25 (c)(e)(1)(iv)

The Authority will use concession-specific goals to meet any portion of the overall goals the Authority
does not project being able to meet using race-neutral means. Concession-specific goals are established
so that, over the period to which the overall goals apply, they will cumulatively result in meeting any
portion of the overall goal that is not projected to be met through the use of race-neutral means.

The Authority will establish concession-specific goals only on those concessions that have direct
ownership arrangements (except car rentals), sublease, or subcontracting possibilities. The Authority
will require businesses subject to ACDBE goals at the airport (except car rental companies) to make good
faith efforts to explore all available options to meet goals, to the maximum extent practicable, through
direct ownership arrangements with DBEs (23.25 (f)). Car rental firms are not required to change their
corporate structure to provide for direct ownership arrangements. In the case of a car rental goal,
where it appears that all or most of the goal is likely to be met through the purchases by car rental
companies of vehicles or other goods or services from ACDBEs, one permissible alternative is to
structure the goal entirely in terms of purchases of goods and services.

The Authority need not establish a concession-specific goal on every such concession, and the size of
concession-specific goals will be adapted to the circumstances of each such concession (e.g., type and
location of concession, availability of ACDBEs.)

If the objective of a concession-specific goal is to obtain ACDBE participation through direct ownership
with an ACDBE, the Authority will calculate the goal as a percentage of the total estimated annual gross
receipts from the concession. (23.25(e){(1)(i))

If the concession-specific goal applies to purchases and/or leases of goods and services, the Authority
will calculate the goal by dividing the estimated dollar value of such purchases and/or leases from
ACDBEs by the total estimated dollar value of all purchases to be made by the concessionaire.
(23.25(e)(1)ii))

Good Faith Efforts on Concession-specific Goals (23.25(e)(1)(iii), (iv))

To be eligible to be awarded a concession that has a concession-specific goal, bidders/offerors must
make good faith efforts to meet the goal. A bidder/offeror may do so either by obtaining enough ACDBE

12



participation to meet the goal or by documenting that it made sufficient good faith efforts to do so.
(23.25(e)(1)(iv)). Examples of good faith efforts are found in Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 26. The
procedures applicable to 49 CFR Sections 26.51 and 26.53, regarding contract goals apply to the
Authority’s concession-specific goals.

Demonstration of good faith efforts (26.53(a) & (c))

The following person is responsible for determining whether a concessionaire who has not met the
concession-specific goal has documented sufficient good faith efforts to be regarded as responsible.

Penny Shifflett
Director of Finance
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200
Charlottesville VA 22911
434-973-8342
pshifflett@gocho.com

The Authority will ensure that all information is complete and accurate and adequately documents the
bidder/offeror’s good faith efforts before a commitment to the concession agreement with the
bidder/offeror is made.

Information to be submitted (26.53(b))

The Authority treats bidder/offeror's compliance with good faith effort requirements as a matter of
responsibility.

Each solicitation for which a concession-specific goal has been established will require the
concessionaires to submit the following information:

1. The names and addresses of ACDBE firms or ACDBE suppliers of goods and services that will
participate in the concession;

2. A description of the work that each ACDBE will perform;
3. The dollar amount of the participation of each ACDBE firm/supplier participating;

4. Written and signed documentation of commitment to use a ACDBE whose participation it submits to
meet a contract goal;

5. Written and signed confirmation from the ACDBE that it is participating in the concession as
provided in the prime concessionaire’s commitment and

6. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts.

Bidders are required to submit the above-referenced information no later than five (5) days after bid
opening. This information can be submitted using the Letter of Intent in Attachment 6 to this program.

In its solicitations for concession contracts for which a contract goal has been established, the Authority
will require the following:

1) Award of the contract will be conditioned on meeting the requirements of this section;

13



2) All bidders or offerors will be required to submit the following information to the recipient, at
the time provided in paragraph (b)(3) of this section:

i.  The names and addresses of ACDBE firms that will participate in the contract;

ii.  Adescription of the work that each ACDBE will perform. To count toward meeting a
goal, each ACDBE firm must be certified in a NAICS code applicable to the kind of work
the firm would perform on the contract;

iii.  The dollar amount of the participation of each ACDBE firm participating;

iv.  Written documentation of the bidder/offeror’s commitment to use an ACDBE sub-
concession whose participation it submits to meet a contract goal; and

v.  confirmation from each listed ACDBE firm that it is participating in the contract in the
kind and amount of work provided in the prime concessionaire’s commitment.

vi.  If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts (see Appendix A of this
part). The documentation of good faith efforts must include copies of each ACDBE and
non-ACDBE sub-concession quote submitted to the bidder when a non-ACDBE sub-
concession was selected over an ACDBE for work on the contract

3) The Authority will require that the bidder/offeror present the information required by
paragraph (b)(2) of this section no later than five (5) days after bid opening as a matter of
responsibility.

Provided that, in a negotiated procurement, including a design-build procurement, the bidder/offeror
may make a contractually binding commitment to meet the goal at the time of bid submission or the
presentation of initial proposals but provide the information required by paragraph (b)(2) of this section
before the final selection for the contract is made by the recipient.

Administrative reconsideration (26.53(d))

Within seven (7) days of being informed by the Authority that it is not responsible because it has not
documented sufficient good faith efforts, a bidder may request administrative reconsideration. The
bidder should make this request in writing to the following reconsideration official:

Melinda Crawford, Executive Director
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200
Charlottesville VA 22911
434-973-8342

The reconsideration official will not have played any role in the original determination that the
concessionaire did not document sufficient good faith efforts.

As part of this reconsideration, the concessionaire will have the opportunity to provide written
documentation or argument concerning the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate good
faith efforts to do so. The concessionaire will have the opportunity to meet in person with the
reconsideration official to discuss the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate good faith
efforts to do. The Authority will send the concessionaire a written decision on reconsideration,
explaining the basis for finding that the concessionaire did or did not meet the goal or make adequate
good faith efforts to do so. The result of the reconsideration process is not administratively appealable
to the US Department of Transportation.

14



15



Good Faith Efforts when an ACDBE is replaced on a concession (26.53(f))

The Authority will require a concessionaire to make good faith efforts to replace an ACDBE that is
terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its concession agreement, lease, or subcontract with
another certified ACDBE, to the extent needed to meet the concession-specific goal. The Authority will
require the concessionaire to notify the ACDBELO immediately of the ACDBESs inability or unwillingness
to perform and provide reasonable documentation.

In this situation, the Authority will require the concessionaire to obtain prior approval of the substitute
ACDBE and to provide copies of new or amended subcontracts, or documentation of good faith efforts.
The Authority will provide such written consent only if the Authority agrees, for reasons stated in a
concurrence document, that the prime concessionaire has good cause to terminate the DBE firm. For
purposes of this paragraph, good cause includes the following circumstances:

(1) The listed ACDBE subconcessionaire fails or refuses to execute a written contract;

(2) The listed ACDBE subconcessionaire fails or refuses to perform the work of its subcontract in a
way consistent with normal industry standards. Provided however, that good cause does not
exist if the failure or refusal of the ACDBE subconcessionaire to perform its work on the
subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action of the prime contractor;

(3) The listed ACDBE subconcessionaire fails or refuses to meet the prime contractor’s reasonable,
non-discriminatory bond requirements.

(4) The listed ACDBE subconcessionaire becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or exhibits credit
unworthiness;

(5) The listed ACDBE subconcessionaire is ineligible to work on public works projects because of
suspension and debarment proceedings pursuant to 2 CFR Parts 180, 215 and 1,200 or
applicable state law;

(6) The Authority has determined that the listed ACDBE subconcessionaire is not a responsible
contractor;

(7) The listed ACDBE subconcessionaire voluntarily withdraws from the project and provides to the
Authority written notice of its withdrawal;

(8) The listed ACDBE is ineligible to receive ACDBE credit for the type of work required;

(9) An ACDBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the listed ACDBE
subconcessionaire is unable to complete its work on the contract;

(10)  Other documented good cause that the Authority has determined compels the termination of
the ACDBE subconcessionaire. Provided, that good cause does not exist if the prime
concessionaire seeks to terminate an ACDBE it relied upon to obtain the contract so that the
prime concessionaire can self-perform the work for which the ACDBE subconcessionaire was
engaged or so that the prime concessionaire can substitute another ACDBE or non-ACDBE
concessionaire after contract award.

Before transmitting its request to the Authority to terminate and/or substitute an ACDBE
subconcessionaire, the prime concessionaire must give notice in writing to the ACDBE
subconcessionaire, with a copy to the Authority, of its intent to request to terminate and/or substitute,
and the reason for the request.

16



The prime concessionaire must give the ACDBE five days to respond to the prime concessionaire’s notice
and advise the Authority and the concessionaire of the reasons, if any, why it objects to the proposed
termination of its subcontract and why the Authority should not approve the prime concessionaire’s
action. If required in a particular case as a matter of public necessity (e.g., safety), the Authority may
provide a response period shorter than five days.

In addition to post-award terminations, the provisions of this section apply to pre-award deletions of or
substitutions for ACDBE firms put forward by offerors in negotiated procurements.

The Authority will require a concessionaire to make good faith efforts to replace an ACDBE that is
terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a concession with another certified ACDBE.
These good faith efforts shall be directed at finding another ACDBE to perform at least the same amount
of work under the concession contract as the ACDBE that was terminated, to the extent needed to meet
the concession contract goal that the Authority established for the procurement. The good faith efforts
shall be documented by the concessionaire. If the Authority requests documentation from the
concessionaire under this provision, the concessionaire shall submit the documentation within 7 days,
which may be extended for an additional 7 days if necessary at the request of the concessionaire, and
the Authority shall provide a written determination to the concessionaire stating whether or not good
faith efforts have been demonstrated.

The Authority will include in each prime concession contract the contract clause required by § 26.13(b)
stating that failure by the concessionaire to carry out the requirements of this part is a material breach
of the contract and may result in the termination of the concession contract or such other remedies set
forth in that section that is deemed appropriate if the prime concessionaire fails to comply with the
requirements of this section.

If the concessionaire fails to comply with this provision, the contracting officer may issue a termination
for default proceeding.

Sample Proposal/Bid Specification:

The requirements of 49 CFR Part 23, requlations of the U.S. Department of Transportation, applies to this
concession. It is the policy of the Authority to practice nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex, or
national origin in the award or performance of this contract. All firms qualifying under this solicitation
are encouraged to submit bids/proposals. Award of this concession will be conditioned upon satisfying
the requirements of this proposal/bid specification. These requirements apply to all concessions firms
and suppliers, including those who qualify as an ACDBE. An ACDBE concession-specific goal of
percent of has been established for this concession. The concession firm shall make good faith efforts, as
defined in Appendix A, 49 CFR Part 26, to meet the concession-specific goal for ACDBE participation in
the performance of this concession.

The concession firm will be required to submit the following information: (1) the names and addresses of
ACDBE firms and suppliers that will participate in the concession, (2) A description of the work that each
ACDBE will perform; (3) The dollar amount of the participation of each ACDBE firm participating; (4)
Written and signed documentation of commitment to use a ACDBE whose participation it submits to
meet a contract goal; (5) Written and signed confirmation from the ACDBE that it is participating in the
concession as provided in the prime concessionaire’s commitment; and (6) If the contract goal is not met,
evidence of good faith efforts.

17



Section 23.53 Counting ACDBE Participation for Car Rental Goals

The Authority will count ACDBE participation toward overall goals for car rental concessions as provided
in 49 CFR 23.53.

Section 23.55 Counting ACDBE Participation for Concessions Other than Car Rentals

The Authority will count ACDBE participation toward overall goals for concessions other than car rentals
as provided in 49 CFR 23.55.

Section 23.57 Goal Setting and Accountability

If the awards and commitments shown on the Authority’s Uniform Report of ACDBE Participation at the
end of any fiscal year are less than the overall applicable to that fiscal year, the Airport will:

1. Analyze in detail the reason for the difference between the overall goal and the actual
awards/commitments;

2. Establish specific steps and milestones to correct the problems identified in the analysis; and
3. Maintain a copy of the plan on file for at least three (3) years.

Section 23.61 Quotas or Set-asides

The Authority will not use quotas or set-asides as a means of obtaining ACDBE participation.

SUBPART E — OTHER PROVISIONS

Section 23.71 Existing Agreements

The Authority will assess potential for ACDBE participation when an extension or option to renew an
existing agreement is exercised, or when a material amendment is made. The Authority will use any
means authorized by part 23 to obtain a modified amount of ACDBE participation in the renewed or
amended agreement.

Section 23.73 Privately-Owned or Leased Terminal Buildings
The Airport does not have any privately-owned or leased terminal buildings.
Section 23.75 Long-Term Exclusive Agreements

The Authority will not enter into a long-term exclusive agreement for concessions without prior
approval of the FAA Regional Civil Rights Office. The Authority understands that a “long-term”
agreement is one having a term of longer than 5 years. The Authority understands that an “exclusive”
agreement is one in which an entire category of a particular business opportunity is limited to a single
business entity. If special, local circumstances exist that make it important to enter into a long-term and
exclusive agreement, the Authority will submit detailed information to the FAA Regional Civil Rights
Office for review and approval.

18



Section 23.79 Geographic Preferences

The Authority will not use a “local geographic preference”, i.e., any requirement that gives an ACDBE
located in one place (e.g., Charlottesville, VA) an advantage over ACDBESs from other places in obtaining
business as, or with, a concession at the airport.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 Organizational Chart

Attachment 2 Virginia UCP DBE Directory

Attachment 3 Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms (26.37)

Attachment 4 Overall Goal Calculations for Car Rentals

Attachment 5 Overall Goal Calculations for Concessions Other Than Car Rentals
Attachment 6 Letter of Intent

Attachment 7 Certification Application Forms

Attachment 8 Regulations: 49 CFR Parts 23

Attachment 9 ACDBE Forms

19



ATTACHMENT 1

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

Organizational chart

Executive Director

Director of Finance
ACDBELO




ATTACHMENT 2

ACDBE DIRECTORY

The DBE Directory for the Commonwealth of Virginia may be found at
https://www.sbsd.virginia.gov/ .




ATTACHMENT 3

Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms

The Charlottesville Albemarle Airport has available several remedies to enforce the ACDBE requirements
contained in its contracts, including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Breach of contract action, pursuant to Virginia Administrative Code.

In addition, the federal government has available several enforcement mechanisms that it may apply to
firms participating in the ACDBE program, including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Suspension or debarment proceedings pursuant to 49 CFR part 23;
2. Enforcement action pursuant to 49 CFR part 31; and
3. Prosecution pursuant to 18 USC 1001.

The Airport willimplement various mechanisms to monitor program participants to ensure they comply
with Part 23, including, but not limited to the following:

1. The Airport will insert the following provisions into concessions agreements and management
contracts at the next lease renewal:

A. The ACDBELO will conduct reviews of attainments versus commitments, on an as-needed
basis. This review will ensure the actual attainments of the ACDBE, as committed at
contract award.

2. The Airport will implement the following additional monitoring and compliance procedures,
consistent with concession contract provisions:

A. The Airport has the right to inspect books and records of the ACDBE concerning
operations at the Airport, directly or indirectly, at the discretion of the Airport.

3. The Airport will implement its compliance and monitoring procedures as follows:

A.  All concessions will be required to submit, to the Airport, monthly revenue reports.
Concessionaires will submit the ACDBE Attainment Reports annually.



Attachment 4

Section 23.45: Overall Goal Calculation for Car Rental Concessions



Attachment 5

Section 23.45: Overall Goal Calculation for Concessions Other Than Car Rentals



ATTACHMENT 6

LETTER OF INTENT

Name of bidder/offeror’s firm:

Address:

City: State: Zip:

Name of ACDBE firm:

Address:

City: State: Zip:

Telephone:

Description of work to be performed by ACDBE firm:

The bidder/offeror is committed to utilizing the above-named ACDBE firm for the work described above. The
estimated dollar value of this work is $

Affirmation

The above-named ACDBE firm affirms that it will perform the portion of the contract for the estimated dollar value
as stated above.

By

(Signature) (Title)

if the bidder/offeror does not receive award of the prime contract, any and all representations in this Letter of
Intent and Affirmation shall be null and void.

(Submit this page for each ACDBE subcontractor.)



ATTACHMENT 7

Certification Application Forms

The Certification Application Forms for the Commonwealth of Virginia

may be found at
https://www.sbsd.virginia.gov/ .




ATTACHMENT 8

49 CFR Part 23

The federal regulations, Title 49
Code of Federal Regulations
Part 23, may be found at
www.ecfr.gov.




ATTACHMENT 9

ACDBE Forms



Procurement Regulations: Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards

Conflicts of interest

No employee, officer, or agent of The Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority (CHO) will participate
in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a
real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer,
or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which
employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a
tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract.

The officers, employees, and agents of CHO must neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything
of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts, unless the financial interest is not
substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. Disciplinary actions will be applied for
violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents of CHO.

CHO will not procure with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, due to the real or
apparent conflict of interest resulting from the relationship.

General Procurement Standards under Federal Awards
Procurements associated with Federal awards are subject to the following:

1. CHO will avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration will be given to
consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. CHO will not
divide large transactions into several smaller transactions for the purpose of avoiding any standard
procurement procedures.

2. Where appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other
appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach.

3. CHO will award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform
successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed procurement. Consideration will be given
to such matters as contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance,
and financial and technical resources.

4. CHO is responsible, in accordance with good administrative practice and sound business judgment,
for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These
issues include, but are not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. These
standards do not relieve CHO of any contractual responsibilities under its contracts. Violations of
law will be referred to the local, state, or federal authority having proper jurisdiction.

Procurement Records
CHO will maintain records sufficient to detail the history of procurement. These records will include, but

are not necessarily limited to the following:

1. Rationale for the method of procurement (if not self-evident);
2. Rationale of contract pricing arrangement (also if not self-evident);



Reason for accepting or rejecting the bids or offers;

Basis for the contract price;

5. A copy of the contract documents awarded or issued and signed by the Executive Director or his
designee;

6. Basis for contract modifications; and

7. Related contract administration actions.

dw

CHO will make available, upon request by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity, technical
specifications on proposed procurements where the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity
believes such review is needed to ensure that the item or service specified is the one being proposed for
acquisition.

CHO will make available upon request, for the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity, pre-
procurement review, procurement documents, such as requests for proposals or invitations for bids, or
independent cost estimates.

Competition under Federal Awards
Procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner to provide, to the maximum extent practical,
open and free competition and must be consistent with the standards as outlined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.319.

Contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, and invitations for
bids or requests for proposal must be excluded from competing for such procurements. Some other
examples of situations considered to be restrictive of competition include but are not limited to:

Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business,

Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding,

Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies,

Noncompetitive awards to consultants that are on retainer contracts,

Organizational conflicts of interest,

Specifying only a brand name product instead of allowing an equal product to be offered and
describing the performance of other relevant requirements of the procurement, and

7. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

SOk wNeE

CHO must conduct procurements in a manner that prohibits the use of administratively imposed state
or local geographical preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals except in cases where applicable
Federal statutes, or state licensing law, expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference,orstate

Ali solicitations will incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the
material, product, or service to be procured. Such description must not, in competitive procurements,
contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of the
qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when necessary, must set
forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its
intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible. When it is impractical
or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a “brand name
or equivalent” description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient




requirements of procurement. The specific features of the named brand which must be met by offers
must be clearly stated. All solicitations will also identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill
and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.

All prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products which are used in acquiring goods and services will be
current and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. Potential
bidders will not be precluded from qualifying during the solicitation period.

Methods of Procurement
CHO will use one of the following methods of procurement:

1. Procurement by micro-purchases (<= $10,000). Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of
supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed $10,000. To the extent
practicable, CHO will distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-
purchases may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if CHO considers the price to
be reasonable. Reasonableness is determined by: comparing the price to past purchases; comparing
price to other online or available prices; and/or requesting prices from more than one vendor.

2. Procurement by small purchase procedures (510,001 - $250,000). Small purchase procedures are
those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, supplies, or other
property that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold of $250,000. if small
purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from four qualified
sources. Prices may be obtained in written, verbal or online search methods.

3. Procurement by sealed bids (formal advertising) (> $250,000). Bids are publicly solicited and a firm
fixed price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid,
conforming to all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price.
In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions will be present:

a. Acomplete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;

b. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the
business;

c. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the
successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.

If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:

a. The invitation for bids will be publicly advertised (for local and tribal governments);

b. Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them
sufficient response time prior to the date set for opening the bids;

c. The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent attachments,
must define the items or services in order for the bidder to properly respond;

d. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids;

e. Bids must be opened publicly (for local and tribalable governments);

f. A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder. Where specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts,
transportation cost, and life cycle costs must be considered in determining which bid is
lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine the low bid when prior
experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken advantage of; and

g. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason.

| 4. Procurement by competitive proposals (> 5250,000). This methodslegy may be chosen when the
procurement is more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently set at $250,000). The
technique of competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an




offer, and either a fixed price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used
when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. If this method is used, the following
requirements apply:

a. Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their
relative importance. Any response to publicized requests for proposals must be considered
to the maximum extent practical;

. Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources;

c. CHO must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of the proposals
received and for selecting recipients;

d. Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to
the program, with price and other factors considered; and

5. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (>510,000). Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is
procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source. Each procurement based on
noncompetitive proposals shall be supported by a written justification for the selection of this
method. This methodelegy may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances
apply:

a. The item is available only from a single source;

b. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from
competitive solicitation;

¢. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes noncompetitive
proposals in response to a written request from CHO or

d. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.

Contract Cost and Price
CHO will perform a cost or price analysis for every procurement action in excess of $250,000, including

contract modifications. A cost analysis generally means evaluating the separate cost elements that make
up the total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price, without looking at the
individual cost elements. The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the
particular procurement situation, but as a starting point, CHO will make independent estimates before
receiving bids or proposals. In order to arrive at an independent estimate of price, the CHO will review
similar price data from colleagues, online searches, and other research. The price estimate will be
documented and saved with the procurement file.

Where applicable, CHO will negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each contract in
which there is no price competition, and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair
and reasonable profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the
risk borne by the contractor, the contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of
its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar
work.

Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal award are allowable only to the
extent that costs incurred, or cost estimates included in negotiated prices would be allowable for CHO
under Subpart E — Cost Principles-of the Uniform Administrative Guidance 2 CFR Part 200.

For construction projects of sufficient size, CHO may use value engineering clauses in contracts to offer
reasonable opportunities for cost reductions. Value engineering is a systematic and creative analysis of
each contract item or task to ensure that its essential function is provided at the overall lower cost.



The cost plus a percentage of cost method of pricing will not be allowed by CHO.

Contracting with Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Business Enterprises, and Labor Surplus
Area Firms

CHO will take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business
enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. Affirmative steps must include:

1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation
lists;

2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited
whenever they are potential sources;

3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit
maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by
small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

5. Using the services and assistance of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the
Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce including websites such as
http://www.sba8a.com/ and https://www.doleta.gov/programs/lsa.cfm;

6. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps.

Subrecipient and Contractor Determinations

CHO will make a case-by-case determination whether each agreement it makes for the disbursement of
Federal program funds casts the party receiving the funds in the role of a subrecipient or a contractor. In
determining whether an agreement between CHO and another non-Federal entity casts the latter as a
subrecipient or a contractor, the substance of the relationship is more important than the form of
agreement. CHO will use judgment in classifying each agreement as a subaward or a procurement

contract.

Suspension and Debarment

CHO verifies that all vendors with a contract of $25,000 or greater, and all subrecipients with whom CHO
intends to do business, areis not excluded or disqualified in accordance with 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix
[1{1) and 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 180.300. The Director of Finance and Administration or their designee
shall perform a search on the General Services Administration Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)
(http://sam.gov), and any state or local exclusion lists, if applicable. Results of the screenings should be
printed and placed in the procurement record.

Provisions Included in all Contracts
It is the policy of CHO to include all of the following provisions, as applicable, in all contracts (including

small purchases) with contractors and subawards with subrecipients:

1. Remedies: All contracts in excess of the small purchase threshold fixed at 41 U.S.C. 403(11) (currently
$250,000) shall contain contractual provisions or conditions that allow for administrative, contractual, or
legal remedies in instances in which a contractor violates or breaches the contract terms.

2. Termination: All contracts in excess of $10,000 shall contain suitable provisions for termination by CHO,
including the manner by which termination shall be effected and the basis for settlement. In addition,
such contracts shall describe the conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default as



well as conditions where the contract may be terminated due to circumstances beyond the control of the
contractor.

Equal Employment Opportunity: Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that
meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the
equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246,
“Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as
amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment
Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.”

Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148): When required by Federal program legislation, all
prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a
provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable
to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute,
contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the
prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition,
contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. CHO must place a copy of the
current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage
determination. CHO must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The
contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C.
3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and
Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from
the United States”). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from
inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to
give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. CHO must report all
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333): [Where applicable] All contracts
awarded by CHO excess of $100,000 for contracts that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers
shall include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of
Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to
compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours.
Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a
rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in
the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that
no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are
unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or
materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or
transmission of intelligence.

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement: Contracts or agreements for the
performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall provide for the rights of the Federal
Government and CHO in any resulting invention in accordance with 37 CFR part 401, "Rights to Inventions
Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and
Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 -1387),
as amended: Contracts and subawards of amounts in excess of $150,000 shall contain a provision that
requires the recipient to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued



pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as
amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.). Violations shall be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the
Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Debarment and Suspension (E.O.s 12549 and 12689): For all contracts, CHO shall obtain from the
contractor a certification that neither the contractor nor any of its principal employees are listed on the
Excluded Parties List System in SAM.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352): For all contracts or Subawards of $100,000 or more,
CHO shall obtain from the contractor or sub-grantee a certification that it will not and has not used
Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence
an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352, Likewise, since each tier provides such certifications to the tier above it,
CHO shall provide such certifications in all situations in which it acts as a sub-recipient of a sub-grant of
$100,000 or more.



